ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
Z R T HEERAMR A A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RHASHESTMRIHBRAR)
Stock Code Bt 55 1627

[

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2R 2020/2021



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

CONTENTS H &

11

12

13

25

35

63

80

89

91

93

94

96

2 F BB

Corporate Information

AR B

Five-year Financial Summary

F ek

Chairman’s Statement

HORFBH A A

Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand

LI

Licenses

LI e B o AT

Management Discussion and Analysis

o v A P e IR

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

R H
Corporate Governance Report

EREHN

Report of the Directors

T8 A% W

Independent Auditor’s Report

AR X2 BAER
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

R PNV S

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR GHERR S B AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A BN ER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

S 5 S A B

Notes to Financial Statements

The English text of this annual report shall prevail over the Chinese text in case of inconsistencies or discrepancies.

AR Z P SORA A AR T e 3 sk 2 B > WERLSE SRR 2 ¥ o

1



2

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

CORPORATE INFORMATION

aihegis

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. IP Yik Nam

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KO Jan Ming (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (appointed on 1 February 2021)
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan (appointed on 1 February 2021)

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy (Chairman)

Prof. KO Jan Ming (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (appointed on 1 February 2021)
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Remuneration Committee

Dr. LI Yok Sheung (Chairman)

Prof. KO Jan Ming (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (appointed on 1 February 2021)
Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai

Nomination Committee

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (Chairman)

Prof. KO Jan Ming (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (appointed on 1 February 2021)
Dr. LI Yok Sheung

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy

Ms. MAK Suk Hing

Mr. MONG Chan (appointed on 1 February 2021)

A

Py

PR M A ()

SR IRSE A (T B 4 #,)
Y1y P
BB g A

e BB S A

B IEAT

FENBR (K ZFZF A — HEZ(E)
EYREAE (R ZFZ—FZH—HEZE)
ZE RN

R L 1

2N &+

SBRE (R ZF A HEZALE)

EREARAN

wBRERE

Rt (£)

BB (R ZF D E )] — HEZLT)
B (R FEZH — HEZATE)
2N 1

ZEImW 2+

SBRE (R ZF T AFZH— HEZAE)

HMZEHG

ML ()

FENBR (K ZFZFE A HEZ(E)
BEIREE (R ZFZ—FZH — HEZR(TE)
Rl L+

R L
SRR ZF T~ HEZ(T)
e I g A

RAZHA

B S A ()

FENBR (K ZFZFE A HEZ(E)
PR (R ZFZ—FZH — HEZR(T)
ZE RN

R L 1

2N &+

SBRE (R ZF T AF T HEZALE)



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED ZR TRREZERERAR | 3

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. MUI Siu Hong, CPA (appointed on 5 September 2020)

Mr. WONG Fu Cheong Desmond, CPA (resigned on 5 September
2020)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
in the Cayman Islands
Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

SHARE INFORMATION

Ordinary share listing

Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited

01627

4,000 Shares

Place of listing

Stock code

Board lot size

WEBSITES

http://www.ableeng.com.hk
http://www.gennexir.com/?page_id=191&code=01627&lang=en_US

In case of any inconsistency between the English version and
the Chinese version of this annual report, the English version
shall prevail.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

2 w) ¥R
AR
MK Rt (g atin) (R =F_FELHHH
HZHT)

HEBRE(Fathn) (R ZFZFFEALALH
BEIT)

188 31 A% Y il

LR Rt il 2
Pt i

A 2 K5 ) 2 B 8 A

R

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

BH 2 T 5

g Sl T B SR

L
JURE S BT B 1559%

By 38 )73 %5 O
I 2 0B 2 ) 5 0

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

BH 2 T 5

T U ey 8 5 %50 0 08
HAEBRETLA AT
il

B REHR1835E

B ARG 5448

JBe By %
e i
T T W I £ 22 5% B
AT LR
01627
4,000/

JBe AR
T HERAL

A ht:

http://www.ableeng.com.hk
http://www.gennexir.com/Ipage_id=191&code=01627&lang=zh_HK

AR it B 9 SORROAR S AP SCRRAS I A B 28 > DL 3%
SCHRA 7y e



Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 S 5 1 2

RESULTS

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

e 3

7R 55 0 20 T A B4 B 2 S A B R R E
R BEZE (1 8% B O B A8 1 B 2 i ) ik 97

published audited financial statements, is set out below: mF :
Year ended 31 March
BEZHAZT—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
TR | ZRORE SR SR\ ZZ4E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T T# T#r T#
REVENUE WA 3,705,241 1,547,841 2,385,415 3,112,264 2,318,317
Contract costs BRI A (3,558,208)| (1,391,313) (2,149,888) (2,862,972) (2,065,285)
Gross profit EH 147,033 156,528 235,521 249,292 253,032
Other income and gains HAb W A S M 25 24,802 13,940 14,049 4,793 1,524
Administrative expenses FTHCB 2 (65,180) (90,292) (80,787) (44,987) (108,232)
Other expenses HAto B S - (40,588) - - -
Finance costs S dil (8,350) (1,320) (528) (221) (235)
Share of profits and losses of WAl & A 3R AT
joint ventures 14,485 1,328 2,173 - (18,333)
Income tax expense Fit Fek A58 B 52 (18,090) (15,621) (29,002) (33,906) (26,269)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A B 94,700 23,975 141,432 174,971 101,487
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Jefb 2w O 8)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/ T A% 1 B T T 4 0
(loss) that may be reclassified EsX s B R g
to profit or loss in subsequent KA/ (8
periods - (1,766) 1,766 - -
Profit and total comprehensive BAFFE B LN
income for the year attributable il e 2 YT WL A AR
to owners of the parent 94,700 22,209 143,198 174,971 101,487
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FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 T 765 1 2
FINANCIAL POSITION MR
As at 31 March
MN=H=+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZECDE | ZEIRE 2RV 22 )0\FE ZF-LF
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FiB FiBr FiB FiBr
Non-current assets L E 1,278,964 707,850 794,862 125,801 14,248
Current assets & E 1,785,361 1,213,315 1,250,598 1,761,665 1,560,050
Non-current liabilities Bl h=R i 486,071 6,716 - 43 271
Current liabilities WA 1,228,711 659,606 732,826 710,280 571,855
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,349,543 1,254,843 1,312,634 1,177,143 1,002,172
TOTAL EQUITY AR S 1,349,543 | 1,254,843 1,312,634 1,177,143 1,002,172

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS B R B E
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R | ZEFIRE 2R 2 0\E 2t
Current ratio e R 1.5 1.8 1.7 2.5 2.7
Earnings per share (HK cents) G BEREAEE R (VAL ) 4.74 1.20 7.07 8.75 5.07
Dividend per share (HK cents) B L (HEAIL) 2.5 - 4 5 -

5
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FiveE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 S 5 1 2

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021 increased by
139% to HK$3,705,241,000 from HK$1,547,841,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

e Net profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
HK$94,700,000 (2020: HK$23,975,000).

e  Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HK4.74 cents (2020: HK1.20 cents).

B R DA

s WAMBRE_FZ-ZHE=HA=1T—HILFE
f91,547,841,000%7C > BEIN139% B#E =
Z—E=ZA=4+—H I ER3,705,241,000
WIT °

o BWEFR_MEZHZ=+—HILFER
FI| ¥ %1 % 94,700,000 ¥ 7 ( =R B4R ¢
23,975,000 7T ) ©

o BEZEZ A=+ HIRG R
AR A 2 4. 74 WA (2R R4 1208
filr) -

Revenue (HK$’ million): Profit for the Year (HK$’million):
WA (HH#L) - ERERA (EEEL)

4000 200

3500

3000 150

2500

2000 100

1500

1000 50

500

0 0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Capital and Liabilities:

JBeA B £ 48 -
As at 31 March 2021

REFAE=ZA=1—H

56%

Other liabilities
Hofh & 1

B Capital and reserves

JBeA B fit

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), 1

report the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021.

RESULTS
During the year under review, the Group was engaged in the
contract works business, which mainly comprised building

construction and repair, maintenance, alteration and addition

(“RMAA”) works in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s consolidated
revenue amounted to HK$3,705,241,000, representing an
increase of 139% from HK$1,547,841,000 for the year ended 31
March 2020. Profit attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$94,700,000 and HK$23,975,000, respectively,
representing an increase of 295% during the year. The basic

and diluted earnings per share for the year were HK4.74 cents
(2020: HK1.20 cents).

The increase in profit attributable to owners of the parent
of the Company was mainly attributable to (i) the onetime
loss on derecognition of the entire remaining net book value
of the building portion of Man Shung Industrial Building
(“Man Shung Building”) at No.7 Lai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong of HK$40,588,000 in last year that the
profit attributable to owners of the parent of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2020 would be HK$64,563,000
if excluding this loss on derecognition (“Adjusted 2020
Profit”); and (ii) the receipt of government subsidies amounted
to HK$18,556,000 from the “Employment Support Scheme”
under the “Anti-Epidemic Fund” in current year. The profit
attributable to owners of the parent of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2021 would be HK$76,144,000 if
excluding the government subsidies (“Adjusted 2021 Profit”).
The Adjusted 2021 Profit represented an increase of 18%
from the Adjusted 2020 Profit which was mainly due to the
increase in share of profits and losses of joint ventures from

HK$1,328,000 to HK$14,485,000.

The net assets value attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company as at 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$1,349,543,000
(approximately HK$0.67 per share), representing an increase
of 8% from HK$1,254,843,000 (approximately HK$0.63 per
share) as at 31 March 2020.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

EN 2
SOk BN
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T TR L ETE0 J0 BOR A B 18,556,0009 7G ©
(FWGBF#HY > BE R ==+
H 1k 4E BE B AR 2 W BE 2 W F5 70 5 HE Al 4 79 % A1 %
F576,144,0009 706 ([ #8903 — % 450 ) o
AR R R T AR A AR R TR AR
AN 18% » EEEEREAMNGESEHSEH
1,328,000% ¢ L T 514,485,000 7C ©

MR —H#=H=1+—H  BARHFEHEZEE
A5 & 7 A8 %5 1,349,543,000 3 75 (45 R £90.67
Jt) > MR FRFE=H =1+—HM1,254,843,000
Wt (B BE490.63 00 ) B8 8% o

7



8

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

NV E 8

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.5 cents (2020: nil) per ordinary share of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2021. The proposed dividend will be
payable on or before 24 September 2021, Friday, subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
2021 annual general meeting of the Company.

Based on the 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
in issues as of the date of this annual report, the total dividend
amounted to HK$50,000,000.

REDEVELOPMENT OF NO. 7 LAI YIP STREET

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Bright Wind Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
accepted a formal written offer, with conditions, from Lands
Department, and paid HK$554,570,000 as premium, in respect
of its proposed modification of the lease of the site of No.7 Lai
Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Site”) from
industrial use to nonresidential use. The redevelopment of the
Site could provide more flexibility to the Group for its future
development with an option to lease out surplus space of the

building, if any.

The demolition works of the Man Shung Building were
completed in July 2020 and the foundation works of the new

building is in progress.

OUTLOOK

Over the past year, economic activities and people’s living
in Hong Kong were inevitably affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. Given that the Group has received full support
and cooperation of our staff and business partners, the
Group’s COVID-19 preventive measures could be effectively
implemented to mitigate the risk of COVID-19 from spreading
on the Group’s premises or construction sites. We believe that
the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our Group’s day-to-
day operation in the next year will be modest even though the
COVID-19 pandemic may not be fully extinguished.

JBe &

EHREERARE _FZ - —~F=ZH=+—HIk
A IR B R YT IR B A BN B 2.5 WAl (=%
FAE ) o HEFARMIB B R ZF A
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JBE AT o BoEVIR % 2 A M L ZE I AR 2 ] B SR AT Y
e e TN i I A S
#ft - Ty AR -

BMAERHYMARATAC BT S E R KR H
2,000,000,000 B w14 - J& B 48 %8 %5 50,000,000 #
ﬁ o

W SR 7

MR -2 =A==+ 1LEE - BEEA
A w) (AR A w] i — B R 2 B B 2 )
O 92 4 b B 4 28 0 A 7 i 9 U T D 2 A 7 9%
A 1L Rz (A B B Bz 1) A 3 400 Wl T3 IR 0T
Ty I AR F & A R R X GE T A K T A
554,570,000% JCAE 2 Hu A8 o HOBTEE R A B b B2 W)
Ty A B T AR 2R 2 T AR ORI N o Sl )RR
B ALK BT i R R 2 T () o

B R BB TR O T R L H SRR
WK BT Bk TR IEAE AT o

T 5%

W3 AR > T I AR B A T R 2R N AN A
Hu 32 B COVID-19%E 1 I 5 288 o 38 H A 48 18 75 3]
BITAEHSMNNE ) XREME S - AL
AR R COVID-19F B i > PLRIKRCOVID-19
T AR 4 [ 1 55 b mk gt 5 b A 3 B R o R AN
s > BIEECOVID-19% 16 R 2 B 58 2481k - B
COVID-19% 1# % A4 8 Wi 42 1 H 3 AR S AR
j( °



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

Although Hong Kong’s economy and the property market have
been affected since the social unrest in the second half of 2019
and the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, the community’s
high demand for housing and healthcare services remains
unchanged. As mentioned by the Chief Executive of the
HKSAR Government in the 2020 Policy Address, the HKSAR
Government had already identified 330 hectares of land for
providing 316,000 public housing units in the coming 10 years
(2021/22 to 2030/31) and committed to facility the provision
of 15,000 transitional housing units within three years from
2020/21. In addition, the HKSAR Government has earmarked
HK$500 billion for two “10-year Hospital Development
Plans”to cope with the increasing demand for healthcare
service arising from the ageing population. Accordingly, we
expect that there will be a steady flow of construction contracts

from the public sector in the coming years.

The HKSAR Government has been implementing the
“Construction 2.0” initiatives and set up a HK$1 billion
“Construction Innovation and Technology Fund” to encourage
wider adoption of innovative constructive methods and new
technologies in the construction industry with a view to
promoting productivity, uplifting built quality, improving site
safety and enhancing environmental performance. In line with
the HKSAR Government’s plan, the Group keeps actively
investing in innovation and technology so as to enhance work
efficiency, quality of work and health and safety performance.
We believe that our ever-improving technology will help to
increase the successful rate in future tendering for new projects.
Our investment in innovation technology will also support the

long-term growth of the Group’s business.

Looking forward, we will keep looking for opportunities
to integrate with our business partners in order to reduce
construction costs, enhance project efficiency and create
synergy, which will create reasonable return for the Group and

the Shareholders in the long run.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHANGE IN BOARD MEMBERS

On 1 February 2021, each of Prof. KO Jan Ming (“Prof. KO”),
Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (“Dr. LEE”) and Mr. MONG Chan
(“Mr. MONG”) was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INED(s)”) and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. I and the
Board would like to express our warm welcome to Prof. KO,
Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG for joining the Board and the Board’s
committees.

On 23 June 2021, Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy (“Ms.
LEUNG”) informed the Board that she will retire as INED
of the Company and cease to be the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company and the Nomination Committee of the Company
after the end of her current service contract on 31 August 2021.
I and the Board would like to express gratitude to Ms. LEUNG
for her invaluable contributions during her tenure of service
and offer best wishes to her.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our
gratitude and sincere appreciation to all management and
employees of the Group for their hard work and dedication, as

well as to all shareholders for their continuous support.

Sincerely,

NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

KT EH A SR

At 31 March 2021, the management estimates the gross RIZFZ—HE=ZA=+—H - FHEMFTERS
and outstanding values of the substantial contracts that  #JAEME K AR 58 A KA 50 2 352 T () AR EE
were awarded to (i) subsidiaries of the Group amounted to Bl JE 4 W 4744.80 W76 K 14,4450 5 K (ii) A<
approximately HK$4,489 million and HK$1,444 million, M &%8EHKA186.756 W7 K 166.68H
respectively; and (ii) joint operations of the Group amounted  JC o M K FHA XM FEAME RN T -

to HK$18,675 million and HK$16,668 million, respectively.

Details of these substantial contracts on hand are set out below:

Projects Contract value
HH R
HK$ million
ZF ¥:n
Building Construction — Awarded to Subsidiaries
MYRE-FTHBAY
Extension and Conversion to St. Paul’s Primary Catholic School at
Wong Nai Chung Road, Happy Valley 322
908 e e st L b B VRO B AR AR R BN
Main Contract for the Proposed Residential Development at
NKIL No. 6567 Kai Tak Area 1K Site 1, Kai Tak, Kowloon 1,898
JUHE BOTE 58 1K 1 5% b B8 1) T JU B P L B SR 656 7% Y AR B 3SR ) R B SR TR
Construction of Public Housing Development at
Tuen Mun Area 54 Site | & 1A 2,269
WS4 R 1 R LASE A L5 B 8 st B S AR
Building Construction — Awarded to Joint Operations
MR- BT HREE
Design and Construction of Redevelopment of Queen Mary Hospital, Phase 1 9,450
— Main Works at Pok Fu Lam Road (note 1)
AT Bk R AR B R R e R AR - R TR (MfaEL)
Main Works for Development of Cingleot Premium Logistics Centre at 5,638
Kwo Lo Wan of Hong Kong International Airport (note 2)
v B PR R B R IR 0 R TR - R (Hft2)
Design and Construction of Joint-user Government Office Building in 3,587
Area 67 Tseung Kwan O (note 3)
BT B g AV SR 67 i ¥ TR Wk P 9 2 KA (Mfat3)

Notes:

1.

Project was awarded to Paul Y. - Able Joint Venture, an unincorporated 1. DR #E — 2R A (0 I o v 0 [ ) AR A > AR
body which 30% interest of this joint operation is attributable to the SR L ] R 30% ME RS o

Project was awarded to BUILD KING - ABLE Joint Venture, an 2. iR B — 2R A8 (30 IR g ok A0 B B ) ke > A
unincorporated body which 49% interest of this joint operation is AR AN % L ] AR 1 49 9% HE AR
attributable to the Group.

Project was awarded to ABLE - PAUL Y. Joint Venture, an 3. R —RIESE (N0 I8 2 0 B 58 ) At » A
unincorporated body which 51% interest of this joint operation is AR A IR R B I 5 1% HERS ©
attributable to the Group.
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LI1CENCES

1t

The following table summarises the details of major
qualifications and licences obtained by members of the Group

as at 31 March 2021.

TRBER ZFZFE=ZH =1 REER
B AR B R 2B SRR

Government Agencies Category Group
BORS B R B Al
Able Engineering Company Limited Zff TLRAMRA W
Works Branch, Development Buildings C (confirmed)
Bureau e (R
B LR Plumbing Installation I (probation)
KEHE JIE R D)
Repair and Restoration of Historic Buildings —
— For works related to “Western Style Buildings’ only
HEfs RABTA JRE s P by — OB [ i 5= A I iy A%
Turn-key Interior Design and Fitting-out Works I
2 BEREE RS TR
Housing Authority Building (New Works) NW?2 (confirmed)
FEZEH® (R LAR) NW2 (#%)
Building (Maintenance) M2 (probation)
2 (R%) M2 GG HT)
Decoration Contractors —
RS AR
Buildings Department General Building Contractors —
EBTE — e SR
Site Formation Works —
Mo PR TR
Foundation Works —
TR
Housing Society Building Works List 2
Z)4 BFRETE E | -
Urban Renewal Authority Repair/Maintenance Works Upper Tier
i [ R Hete R TR g

Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department

BE LRSS

Registered Electrical Contractors (“Electricity Ordinance”)

ol it 5 S AR o i (CFE D sl ) )

Able Building Construction Limit

ed RHEBEAHARAA

Buildings Department

RB¥E

General Building Contractors

— B SRR

Able Contractors Limited ZPREEAT A

Housing Authority

FREZHE

Decoration Contractors

FAE TR




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Group was engaged as a main
contractor in building construction and repair, maintenance,
alteration and addition (“RMAA”) works in Hong Kong. As of
31 March 2021, the Group’s substantial contracts on hand were
mainly related to building construction works from the public
sector.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s consolidated
revenue amounted to HK$3,705,241,000, representing an
increase of 139% from HK$1,547,841,000 for the year ended 31
March 2020. Profit attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$94,700,000 and HK$23,975,000, respectively,
representing an increase of 295% during the year. The basic
and diluted earnings per share for the year were HK4.74 cents
(2020: HK1.20 cents).

The increase in profit attributable to owners of the parent
of the Company was mainly attributable to (i) the onetime
loss on derecognition of the entire remaining net book value
of the building portion of Man Shung Industrial Building
(the “Man Shung Building”) at No.7 Lai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Site”) of HK$40,588,000
in last year that the profit attributable to owners of the parent
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
be HK$64,563,000 if excluding this loss on derecognition
(“Adjusted 2020 Profit”); and (ii) the receipt of government
subsidies amounted to HK$18,556,000 from the “Employment
Support Scheme” under the “Anti-Epidemic Fund” in
current year. The profit attributable to owners of the parent
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
be HK$76,144,000 if excluding the government subsidies
(“Adjusted 2021 Profit”). The Adjusted 2021 Profit
represented an increase of 18% from the Adjusted 2020 Profit
which was mainly due to the increase in share of profits and

losses of joint ventures from HK$1,328,000 to HK$14,485,000.

The net asset value attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company as at 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$1,349,543,000
(approximately HK$0.67 per share), representing an increase
of 8% from HK$1,254,843,000 (approximately HK$0.63 per
share) as at 31 March 2020.
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YT R RERAA T RE % ==
P45 5 £ B e — O 2«
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T AR BE Y o AR AR T HE R BT R B
FWRFEEFEEREHE - RE - W@ Rng
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o

NRE B —F=A=1+—HIEE > KEH
B 47 A WA £53,705,241,0008 06 - BRE T
FEZ=ZH =4 —H IR BEM1,547,841,000 % 7T
n139% - ME_-F -4 =ZH=Z+—HE %
ZREZAZTHILEE  KAFBAFRRNE
F EAY : A 43 B 594,700,000 56 % 23,975,0009
TG o BEM295% o AAE FE B I AR K% 4 2 R A
4. 74 (2T ZFA4E  1.20%) -

A w8 R R WA R B 3 R R (i)
PR IR BEH WGBSR
M pz 1) 0 IE T3 K BT (T B e K 88 1) M= 43 1Y
2 BB T MR TG T A A Y B UK R 2R 40,588,000
Wt (AR K RTEKIEHERELR > REEZF
FEZA=ZT—HIREENKARI ARG H
JRE A 5 1 1% %5 64,563,000 50 ([ i 3 — 2 %
AEREA 1)) 5 B (i) AT B T I 93 g 3k 4 |
TR TOR A S ETE 0 BOR # B 18,556,0009 7€ o
(HEMBB M RE 2 —E=H=1+—
H Ik 4E BE B AS 2 W BE 2 W F5 70 5 HE Al 4 79 % A 1%
F4576,144,0009 00 ([ #H¥E R~ ~4ERHM])) -
BB _F - FmMREHE R R 6
FHE M 18% » F T FE R A G B AEEDH
1,328,000%# 7t _E T+ % 14,485,000% JT ©

R-FZ—F=ZA=Z+—H > KAFEBAAF
% TEAY G T AE A 1,349,543,000 ¥ 7T (£ B
#A50.67WT) WR-ZRE=ZH=1T—HMN
1,254,843,000 ¥ JC (B A1450.63 %50 ) B4 8% o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PRk iy B oy B

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.5 cents (2020: nil) per ordinary share of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of shareholders of the Company
on 3 September 2021, Friday. The proposed payment of the
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming 2021 annual general meeting
(“AGM”) of the Company and has not been recognised as a
liability as at 31 March 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market Review

Over the past year, the progress of tendering and approval
projects from public sector has inevitably been affected by the
coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) pandemic. However, with
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR Government”)’s commitment in increasing land
supply for housing and the number of public housing units and
the commencement of two “10-year Hospital Plan”, tender
opportunities regard the construction contracts from the public

sector in the coming years will be sustainable and stable.

The Group’s Performance

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$3,705,241,000 (2020: HK$1,547,841,000),
representing an increase of 139% from that of last year. The
increase in revenue was mainly resulted from two substantial
building constructions which contributed over 58% of the
revenue in this year. These projects are in mature stage and

expected to be completed in coming twelve months.

The gross profit margin decreased from 10.1% for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to 4.0% for the year ended 31 March
2021. Under the adoption of HKFRS 15, the gross profit
margins of the Group’s individual contract works will not
remain constant but will fluctuate over different reporting
periods, depending on the actual revenue certified and costs

incurred for the construction work performed.

JBe &

EHAEERRKRE R FEA=F—HILE
Rt = F ZFIUAZH (R A FIA A A
Jise SR8 i Mk 4 Jhe SRR B AR I B S, > e
L5WAN (R A ¢ ) o BEIREE AR B
TR T B BR AT I % AR R AR K
(T HOHAE R fr ) ERERA A RO > JF
AR > BROR R R R R A —F A=A
=t -AmERA R -

3 4l i

i B5R Bt

WA ABMMEAAEREFESRT
2 04 i B2 b S W] 4 b % BT 25 R W %
(TCOVID-19 1) Wy 1 5 B A P i #% = AR BE
A Y R 90 AT I B (K IR BORS ) 7 i 44 T 55 [
FA Mo B HE R oy R BT - DARCEOHE W T 47
e gt at il | - RACEAER A AP EEAH
A G R AR A -

A 5 B

BREZ =2+ —HILEE A4
Ay W A 5 3,705,241,000 9 00 ( 8 R4
1,547,841,000% 7G) > & _EAFEHN139% - WA
CY By SE R VN S5 NI
AAGAAE BEWC AT 58% DA | o J2 Wi fiE T E IR 7 B
PSR > THFHIF AR A M H NS o

EBHRERE-Z_RE=A=1T—HILFEY
101% FTHERE 2 —4E=H=+—HIL4
BEMI4.0% o TEFRA A v A B B ERI B 159R F >
7 S [ B A 49 TR I B R SR R B PR 5 RS T
WP O A7 S TR T A R A R A
BBAT A 7 e 35 390 A o e B o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Building Construction Works
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the following substantial
contracts were awarded to the joint operations with the Group’s

subsidiary participation:

e Main Works for Development of Cingleot Premium
Logistics Centre at Kwo Lo Wan of Hong Kong
International Airport, a project with a contract sum of
HK$5,638 million was awarded to BUILD KING — ABLE
Joint Venture, an unincorporated body which 49% interest
of this joint operation is attributable to the Group; and

e Design and Construction of Joint-user Government Office
Building in Area 67 Tseung Kwan O, a project with a
contract sum of HK$3,587 million was awarded to ABLE
— PAUL Y. Joint Venture, an unincorporated body which
51% interest of this joint operation is attributable to the
Group.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date
of approval of this annual report, the Group was also secured

the following substantial contract with estimated contract
value of HK$2,260 million:

e Construction of Public Housing Development at Yip
Wong Road Phase 1 and Phase 2, Tuen Mun

We expect the above mentioned contract will be substantially

completed in four years from the project commencement.

On the other hand, the Group completed the following
significant contract regarding building maintenance works
during the year ended 31 March 2021:

e Hospital Authority Term Contract for Gascoigne Road
Site of Minor Capital Project 15/16
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B E TR
RBREFF=ZH=1—HILEE » REH
FofJig 23 W] 2 BB 8 SE B IR A TR A4 ¢

o TV BB M B o R P 0 R T
- EETR - WIEHH B -ZREE
(OPIEEEEEE > REEGZGE XY
BI49%HE s K EE) - A A RAE56. 38T 3
K

o R A A A N RS 67 [ B RS T
AKM - WIHH BRR - RESE IR
2 0 R AR AN A 5 1% 0E
fRAREL) > A AIFAME35. 8T IC o

RRE R =A==+ —HILEEE S
AERZH - REBIFREBUTFTEKRAL - HH
A AR EE A 522,606 WG ¢
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SEH, ©
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H IR ARBESE A T B = A1 TRR 40
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PRk iy B oy B

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased from HK$13,940,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to HK$24,802,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2021. For the year ended 31 March 2021,
the increase in the other income and gains was mainly due
to the Group applied and recognised government subsidies
of HK$18,556,000 under the “Employment Support Scheme”
provided by the HKSAR Government during the year. The
Group did not implement any involuntary no-pay leave or pay-
out measures amid the adverse economic environment under

COVID-19 pandemic.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from HK$90,292,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to HK$65,180,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The decrease in the administrative
expenses was mainly due to (i) decrease in the discretionary
performance-related bonuses and donations; (ii) the respective
remuneration of three out of five executive directors who were
fully engaged in project management being included in the
contract costs for the year; and (iii) capitalisation of relevant
consultancy fees and demolition costs incurred during the

year for the redevelopment as mentioned in the section of

“REDEVELOPMENT OF NO. 7 LAI YIP STREET”.

Other Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not incur
any other expense. Other expense for the year ended 31 March
2020 represented the onetime loss on derecognition of the
entire remaining net book value of the building portion of Man
Shung Building of HK$40,588,000, following the decision to
demolish the Man Shung Building and redevelop the Site.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s finance costs
amounted to HK$8,350,000 (31 March 2020: HK$1,320,000).
The interest for bank loans increased by HK$6,650,000 in
this year due to the increase in bank loans raised during the
year comparing with last year. On the other hand, the interest
on lease liabilities of HK$796,000 (2020: HK$416,000) was
incurred and recorded under this item in accordance with

HKERS 16.

JUAl VBN B W 2

HB AR W B RBRE R RE=ZH=1+—H
113,940,000 T LTI E R - —~HF=H=+—
H Ik 47 B 124,802,000 00 - RKE R = —4¢
ZAZ+—HIRFEE B Kk B
> A 4 [ A A T B S S A R e R D BT R 1Y
[ DR 2& 51 80 0 BORF 4l Bh 42 18,556,000 76 © H
COVID-19% 1 Bt 51 8 Z B g SRy IR BT T » AR
LN Sy RERUEREVINES ZINCERE iy

AT PR 3
THHAXHKRE_F_FFE=HA=+—HIL4
BEM)90,292,000% LA ERE —F _—HF=H
Z+—H L4 #165,180,000% 7T © 178 B 32 il A
1 2 35 R () B 1 R BIAR AT B AR i A 5 (i) 143
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures

The share of profits of joint ventures was solely arisen from
the share of profits of Gold Victory Resources Inc. (“Gold
Victory”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “JV Group”)
in which the Group has 50% interest. For the year ended 31
March 2021, net profits shared by the Group from the JV Group
amounted to HK$14,485,000 (2020: HK$1,328,000).

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) entered into between Grand Superb Limited
(“Grand Superb”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), Golden Stone Asia Inc. (“Golden Stone”,
the holding company of the Gold Victory and a company
controlled by Mr. WONG Kin Wah (“Mr. WONG”, an
independent third party), and Mr. WONG on 30 November
2018, Mr. WONG irrevocably warrants and guarantees to
Grand Superb that the actual profits of the JV Group for the
period commencing from 1 December 2018 and ending on 31
March 2022 (the “Profit Warranty Period”) shall not be less
than the guaranteed profits (the “Guaranteed Profits”) of
HK$50 million (the “Profit Warranty”). In the event the total
Guaranteed Profits are not achieved or reached for the entire
Profit Warranty Period based on auditor’s certification, Golden
Stone shall pay Grand Superb 50% of the shortfall between the
actual profits and the Guaranteed Profits, unless the shortfall
is caused by the event of force majeure as defined in the
Equity Transfer Agreement. The Profit Warranty constitutes a

derivative financial instrument of the Group.

For the period from 1 December 2018 to 31 March 2021, the
JV Group recognised an accumulated profit of HK$51,425,000,
higher than that previously estimated and illustrated in the
joint announcement dated 30 November 2018. The Group
will closely monitor the financial performance of the JV
Group during the remaining Profit Warranty Period to ensure
the Profit Warranty are met or remedy action has been taken

according to the Equity Transfer Agreement.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 16% from HK$15,621,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2020 to HK$18,090,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2021. The increase was consistent with the
increase in taxable profit for this year.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
parent increased by 295% from HK$23,975,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to HK$94,700,000 for the year ended 31
March 2021.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The capital of the Group only comprises ordinary shares. The
Group mainly rely on its internally generated capital and bank
borrowings to finance its business. The total equity of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 was HK$1,349,543,000 (31 March
2020: HK$1,254,843,000).

The Group monitors capital structure using net gearing ratio,
which is measured as interest-bearing bank loans less cash and
bank balances, divided by equity attributable to owners of the

parent. As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio was
0 (31 March 2020: 0).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased by 47% from
HK$616,645,000 as at 31 March 2020 to HK$904,933,000 at 31
March 2021 was mainly due to net effect of (i) increase in net
borrowing; (ii) the net cash inflows from operating activities;
and (iii) payment of land premium of the Site. Current ratio
stood at 1.45 and 1.84 at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
respectively. Current ratio is measured at total current assets

divided by total current liabilities.

The Group’s banking facilities, comprising primarily bank
loans, bank overdrafts and performance bonds, amounted to
HK$2,950,000,000 as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
HK$2,040,000,000), of which HK$1,819,566,000 (31 March
2020: HK$1,717,135,000) was unutilised.

Looking forward, due to (i) the new substantial projects
awarded to a subsidiary of the Group and the joint operations
in which a subsidiary of the Group is a joint operator are in the
preliminary stage of development; and (ii) the redevelopment
of the Site, it is expected significant amount of cash will be
consumed in the coming twelve months. The Group will
continuously take a prudent and cautious approach to cash
application and capital commitments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest and Foreign Exchange Exposure

At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group’s bank
borrowings were all denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
on a floating rate basis. The Group’s bank accounts were
operated with principal bankers in Hong Kong. The interest
rates of these bank accounts are determined by reference to the

respective banks’ offer rates.

The Group’s business operations are in Hong Kong and the
Group’s business transactions are denominated in the local
currencies. Hence, the Group is not exposed to significant

foreign exchange risk.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the
Group did not engage in any interest rates and currency

hedging or speculation activities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$1,185,004,000 as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
HK$618,512,000). The increase was due to the net effect of
(i) the additions to right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment of total HK$618,508,000 (including the
land premium paid for the Site); and (ii) the depreciation of
HK$52,016,000 provided during the year.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
The balance represented the cash value of a life insurance

acquired for an executive Director during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Accounts Receivable

The Group’s accounts receivable represented the receivables
for contract works in relation to completed and on-going
contract works projects. Accounts receivable represents
progress billing of work performed and the progress payment
certificates issued by and received from our customers. The
level of accounts receivable is principally affected by our work
progress and the amount of the progress payment certificate
received from our customers up to the end of the financial
period. Approximately 99% of the accounts receivable as at 31
March 2021 was subsequently settled as at 16 June 2021 (31
March 2020: approximately 93% was subsequently settled by 10
June 2020).
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Contract Assets

Balance at current year end mainly represented retention
of receivables of HK$275,061,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$168,307,000) and unbilled revenue of HK$245,966,000
(31 March 2020: HK$50,538,000). Retention receivables
represent the retention monies required by our customers to

secure our Group’s due performance of the contracts.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the prepayments, other receivables
and other assets mainly represented the prepaid insurance for
contract works projects, construction waste disposal deposits
and rental and utilities deposit. The decrease in total balance
during the year was mainly due to the net effect of (i) the
refund of stamp duty recoverable amounting to HK$26,979,000
in respect of the redevelopment of the Site; and (ii) prepaid
insurance for newly awarded construction projects during the

year.

Other Payables and Accruals

As of 31 March 2021, the current and non-current balances
of other payable and accruals amounted to HK$447,974,000
(31 March 2020: HK$222,234,000) and HK$4,071,000 (31
March 2020: HK$6,716,000), respectively, which mainly
represented provision for contract works, staff costs payable and
the lease liabilities recognised. The increase in total balance
during the period was mainly due to the net effect of (i) the
increase in provision for contract works of HK$185,227,000;
and (ii) the increase in the recognition of lease liabilities of

HK$35,562,000.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the property, plant and equipment,
accounts receivable, unbilled revenue and retention receivables
related to certain contract works of HK$1,156,000,000 (2020:
nil), HK$87,632,000 (31 March 2020: HK$130,653,000),
HK$100,411,000 (31 March 2020: HK$43,824,000) and
HK$61,034,000 (31 March 2020: HK$103,575,000),
respectively, and equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group
were pledged in favour of certain banks to secure certain bank
loans granted by those banks to members of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2021, bank deposit of HK$110,000,000
(31 March 2020: HK$110,000,000) was pledged to secure
a guarantee deposit for the performance bond issued by the
relevant bank in relation to a construction project of the
Group. The Group’s bank loans with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$87,276,000 (31 March 2020: HK$121,517,000)
at year end were secured by certain deposits accounts
maintained with these banks as continuing security for the
obligations of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note

31 to the financial statements.

Capital Commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments are set out in note
32 to the financial statements.

REDEVELOPMENT OF NO.7 LAI YIP STREET

As disclosed in the announcement of Company dated 10
November 2020, Bright Wind Limited (“Bright Wind”, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) received
a formal written offer (the “Offer”), with conditions, from
Lands Department in respect of its proposed modification of
the lease of the Site from industrial use to non-residential
use (the “Proposed Lease Modification”). Pursuant to the
Offer, the premium of the Proposed Lease Modification was
amounted to HK$554,570,000 (the “Premium”) and the Site
could be redeveloped for non-residential use that the total gross
floor area of the non-residential building to be erected shall
not exceed 14,775 square meters. The redevelopment of the
Site could provide more flexibility to the Group for its future
development with an option to lease out surplus space of the

building, if any.

As at the date of approval of this annual report, Bright Wind
accepted the Offer and paid the Premium. The demolition
works of the Man Shung Building were completed in July
2020. The construction of new building is in progress. Further
announcement(s) in relation to the development of the Site
will be made by the Company as and when appropriate in
accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rule”).
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POSSIBLE ACQUISITION

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company
and Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”,
a company incorporated in Bermuda and which shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange (stock code:
15) from 8 September 2000 to 22 October 2020, ceased to
be the intermediate holding company of the Company on 19
November 2020) dated 9 July 2019, Rhythm Classic Limited
(the “Purchaser”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a framework agreement on 9 July
2019 (the “Framework Agreement”) with an independent
third party (“Vendor”) for the possible acquisition of 100%
of the equity interest of a Hong Kong company (the “Target
Company”) and 100% of the interest-free shareholder loan
(if any) advanced by the Vendor to the Target Company
at a consideration of HK$130,000,000 (the “Possible
Acquisition”). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the
Possible Acquisition is conditional upon, among others,
the fulfilment of the conditions as stated in the Framework
Agreement (the “Conditions Precedent”) within 180 days
from the date of signing of the Framework Agreement, or such
other period as duly agreed by both parties in writing (the
“Agreement Valid Period”).

The Agreement Valid Period was extended to 2 July 2020 (or
such other period as duly agreed by both parties in writing) (the
“Extended Agreement Valid Period”) as further disclosed in

the other joint announcement of the Company and Vantage
dated 2 January 2020.

Given that the Conditions Precedent were not fulfilled or
waived by the Purchaser within the Extended Agreement Valid
Period and no further agreement was entered into between the
Purchaser and the Vendor, the Company and Vantage jointly
announced on 3 July 2020 that the Framework Agreement
was lapsed after the end of the Extended Agreement Valid
Period on 2 July 2020 pursuant to the terms of the Framework
Agreement. Therefore, the Possible Acquisition constituted

under the Framework Agreement was not proceeded.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were listed (the
“Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange on 20
February 2017 (the “Listing Date”). Net proceeds from the
Listing were approximately HK$524 million (after deducting
the underwriting commission and other expenses in relation
to the 500,000,000 new ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
listing of Shares on The Stock Exchange. The balance of net
proceeds was fully utilised during the year (31 March 2020: the
unused net proceeds were approximately HK$82 million).

According to the section “Future Plans and Proposed Use of
Proceeds” as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 26
January 2017, the Group used the net proceeds during the year
ended 31 March 2021 as follows:
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Unused
Net proceeds Unused amount at
from amount at Used in 31 March
the Listing 1 April 2020 this year 2021
RERRAE e S
Lipi WH—H AEBH  ZA=1+—H
AETE WA AR ME®  WAENEH
HK$'million HK$'million HK$' million HK$ million
H # T HH#T H H T
Maintaining and increasing the employed capital ~ #EF A IR K /B A B FHH
requirement and working capital requirement for T B kB & 45K
future/new projects in the public sector 402 82 (82) -
Payment for the upfront costs AR A 10 - - -
General working capital —REEES 52 - - -

Total Hm 524 82 (82) -
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 March 2021, the Group employed 330 full-time
employees (31 March 2020: 336) in Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance and
work experience and with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. On top of the regular remuneration, discretionary
bonus and share options may be granted to senior management
and staff members by reference to the Group’s performance,
specific project’s performance as well as the individual
employee’s performance. Staff benefits include mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, incentive travel (suspended
in the year under the COVID-19 pandemic), subsidies for
education and training programmes, etc..

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31
August 2018, the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was considered and approved. The purposes of the
Scheme are to provide incentives for the directors and full-
time employees of the members of the Group to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme
provides the Group with a flexible means of either retaining,
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to participants of the Scheme. From the
date of adoption of the Scheme and up to 31 March 2021, the
Company did not grant any share options under the Scheme
and no equity-settled share option expense was charged to the

profit or loss.
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B1oGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”), aged 58, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. NGAI joined the Group
in February 1996 and has been the Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company since July 2016.
Mr. NGALI is also the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(“Vantage”, a company incorporated in Bermuda and which
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”) (stock code:
15) from 8 September 2000 to 22 October 2020, ceased to
be the intermediate holding company of the Company on 19
November 2020) since July 2000.

Mr. NGALI is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. NGAI has over 24 years of experience in
the construction industry. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the Board and the strategic planning of the
Group.

Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU Kwok Fai are brothers-in-law.

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (“Mr. CHEUNG?”), aged 49, joined
the Group in September 2003, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2016. Mr. CHEUNG was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
February 2020. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. CHEUNG is primarily responsible for providing
leadership for the management, implementing and reporting to
the Board on the Group’s strategy, day-to-day management and
operations, business development, corporate governance affairs,
project estimation, project sub-contracting and procurement

management of the Group.

Mr. CHEUNG has over 25 years of experience in the
construction industry. He obtained a bachelor degree in
Quantity Surveying from University of Greenwich of the
United Kingdom (“UK”) in July 1998 and a higher diploma
in Building Surveying from City University of Hong Kong in
November 1995.

o2 I A AT LI el R

AT H P

B e ([ BB 1) > Tt )R - IR — LA
FEAMAREE > ByA AT EBOR > HH
F-ANFCAMEARAFEF TR RPITHE
F oo MEEH FFRELASABEEBRAR
AT(TEA ] RESEEIRL AT - e
BB A ZFFFENANHEZZFREL
HIZHZHR B WA 2 5 A RA R (8%
Bt 1) TR B OB AREE < 15) > i ZF %4
T AT IUHBAFERARA T Z B R A )
ERG LR RPTES -

BLAE A Ry A G T T M O W S R o R A AR
AFRATHENER - R EREE SRR
T AR o B EH AR E R G R
¥ SR M AL ) A o

BLSE A T B S A B K B -

WA ([REA D > WHJupk - R=FR=
FEILAMAARLEE > 478 ZF—ANFEILA HEA
AFPITES - REBER ZFREZABRM
Ry AN T AT BCRRER o BTN s A AR I T R M
FMES o RAeA EREAHEEEE - HITA
5 S e o M 1) o ME R - AR HO A
BURGEAR BRI - REEIREH - HAMT
JHH 5 B HR i TARE B o

oS A R BRI b AR R o R
VWA SRR EE EA T IV 3 ML/ VA PN 2
ORI B B A R UL AR H A
A T B B A B v A SR

25



26

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

B10GRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o2 B B AT LI il i

Mr. IP Yik Nam (“Mr. IP”), aged 41, joined the Group in
April 2016, has been an Executive Director of the Company
since September 2016. Mr. IP was also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company from September 2016 to February 2020.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
IP is primarily responsible for business development, legal and

compliance and corporate governance affairs of the Group.

Mr. IP has over 16 years of management experience through
assuming various management roles in companies in the
United States (“US”) and Hong Kong. Mr. IP graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist University with a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Human Resources Management in
December 2002. He further obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from Long Island University of the US
in May 2004 and a Bachelor of Laws degree from University of
London of the UK in August 2011.

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel (“Mr. LAU”), aged 52, joined the
Group in November 2005, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since September 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. LAU is primarily
responsible for building project management and contract

administration work of the Group.

Mr. LAU has over 28 years of experience in the construction
industry. He obtained a bachelor degree in Construction
Management from South Bank University of the UK in July
1993 and a higher diploma in Building Technology and
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”))
in November 1991. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Construction Managers.
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Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”), aged 55, joined the
Group in February 1996, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since July 2016. Mr. YAU is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. YAU is
responsible for formulating policy and overall development of
the Group. Mr. YAU was the deputy chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Vantage from July 2000
to October 2020, and the chief executive officer of Vantage
from July 2004 to October 2020.

Mr. YAU has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Mr. YAU obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Civil Engineering (First Class Honours) from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic in November 1990, a diploma from the Imperial
College London of the UK in July 1991 and a Master of Science
degree with distinction in Structural Steel Design from the
University of London of the UK in August 1991. Mr. YAU is
a Chartered Engineer and a Member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Institution of Structural Engineers of the UK
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”). He is
also a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil & Structural)
and a Registered Structural Engineer under the Buildings
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. YAU and Mr. NGAI are brothers-in-law.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(“INED(S)”)

Prof. KO Jan Ming (“Prof. KO”), aged 78, has been an
INED of the Company since 1 February 2021. He is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the Company. He is currently a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

Remuneration Committee. Prof. KO was an INED of Vantage
from July 2000 to October 2020.

Prof. KO has over 50 years of experience in structural
engineering and industrial collaboration. He is the former Vice
President and former Chair Professor of Structural Engineering
of PolyU, and currently an Emeritus Professor at the PolyU
and Senior Advisor of its Research Institute for Sustainable
Urban Development. Prof. KO holds a bachelor degree in Civil
Engineering and a doctorate degree in Structural Engineering
from the University of Hong Kong (“HKU”). He is a Fellow
of each of HKIE, the Institution of Structural Engineers of the
UK, the American Society of Civil Engineers and the Hong

Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

Prof. KO was presented The President’s Award of HKIE in
2006 and was inducted into the Hall of Fame of HKIE in 2010.
Prof. KO was presented The HKIE Gold Medal in 2011. In
the same year, Prof. KO was also presented The Aftab Mufti
Medal by the International Society for Structural Health
Monitoring of Intelligent Infrastructures in recognition of his
lifetime achievement in civil structural health monitoring. In
November 2016, Prof. KO was conferred the Honorary Doctor
of Engineering by PolyU in recognition of his distinguished

accomplishments and contributions.

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (“Dr. LEE”), aged 60, has been
an INED of the Company since 1 February 2021. He is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the Company. He is currently a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Dr. LEE was a non-executive
director of Vantage from September 2016 to October 2020.
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Dr. LEE is a registered dentist in Hong Kong. He completed
his undergraduate training in dentistry at the University of
Adelaide, Australia. He then received a Commonwealth
Scholarship Medical Award to pursuit his postgraduate training
at the Institute of Dental Surgery, University of London, UK.
He attained Fellowship of the Royal Australasian College of
Dental Surgeons by examination and is an inaugural Fellow of
the College of Dental Surgeons of Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Academy of Medicine.

Dr. LEE was a Director and the Honorary Treasurer of the Royal
Australasian College of Dental Surgeons, the Deputy Chairman
of the Interchange Association of Dental Medicine among
Shanghai, Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan and a member of the
Editorial Board of the journal of “Hong Kong Medical Diary”.
Dr. LEE had served as a Senior Dental Officer of Department of
Health of the Government of Hong Kong (the “Government”),
a Honorary Consultant Dental Service (Paediatric Dentistry) of
the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong and a Part-time Clinical
Lecturer in the Faculty of Dentistry of the HKU.

Dr. LI Yok Sheung (“Dr. L1”), aged 68, has been an INED of
the Company since January 2017. He is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent advice to the Company.
He is currently the chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination

Committee.

Dr. LI has over 32 years of experience in civil engineering
and education. He graduated from HKU with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Engineering in November 1975 and obtained
a Doctor of Philosophy degree in November 1980. Dr. LI joined
PolyU as lecturer in September 1984 and was appointed as the
Chair Professor of Coastal and Environmental Engineering in
January 2000. From July 2000 to July 2007, he also served as the
Head of the “Department of Civil and Structural Engineering”
(renamed as “Department of Civil and Environmental
Engineering” in 2012) of PolyU. Dr. LI retired from the
position of chair professor in June 2013 and was appointed as
advisor to Head of Civil and Environmental Engineering from
September 2013 to August 2018.
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Dr. LI is a Registered Professional Engineer. He is also a Fellow
of the HKIE since September 1997. Dr. LI served on the
publications committee of the HKIE between 2002 and 2008
and was the chairman of such committee from 2005 to 2008.
He was a member of the Structural Engineers Registration
Committee Panel under the Buildings Department in 2004
and 2005. He was appointed as an independent reviewer by
the then Territory Development Department for the Central
Reclamation Phase III Project in 2003.

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy (“Ms. LEUNG”), aged 50,
has been an INED of the Company since January 2017. She is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the Company. She is currently the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration

Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Ms. LEUNG has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
finance and substantial experience in managerial roles. She
had worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for over 11 years
with extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance, and
corporate reorganisation. Ms. LEUNG was then employed by a
private broadcasting company as the vice president of finance
in charge of its financial activities and a multinational artist
management company as the strategic development general

manager responsible for its corporate strategic plans and

policies from 2009 to 2012.

Ms. LEUNG obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree (majoring in Accounting and Finance) from Simon
Fraser University, Canada in May 1995 and a Master Business
Administration degree in Business Management (majoring in

International Management) from University of London of the

UK in November 1997.

Ms. MAK Suk Hing (“Ms. MAK?”), aged 68, has been an INED
of the Company since January 2017. She is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice to the
Company. She is currently a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.
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Ms. MAK has over 37 years of experience in education and
management. She graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (“CUHK”) with a Bachelor of Science degree
in October 1975 and obtained a diploma in Education in
December 1980. From 1975 to 1997, Ms. MAK served as
the assistant education officer, education officer and senior
education officer for Education Bureau. She was the principal
of Tai Po Government Secondary School from 1997 to 2000
and the principal of South Tuen Mun Government Secondary
School from 2000 to 2008. She was a committee member
of the School Management Committee of the Clementi
Secondary School from 2011 to 2013. From November 2013 to
August 2015, Ms. MAK was an INED of Excel Development
(Holdings) Limited (a company which shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange, had its name changed
since 16 January 2017; stock code: 1372). She has also
been a member of New Territories East Region of the Scout
Association of Hong Kong until 2017.

Ms. MAK is currently the assessor for Needs Analysis for
Aspiring Principals Programme in the CUHK. She is also a
member of the Executive Committee of Rural Training College
Alumni Association Limited.

Mr. MONG Chan (“Mr. MONG?”), aged 72, has been an
INED of the Company since 1 February 2021. He is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent
advice to the Company. He is currently a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. MONG was an INED of
Vantage from May 2019 to October 2020.

Mr. MONG has over 40 years of experience in financial and
cost management, accounting, general management and
information technology. Mr. MONG obtained a Bachelor of
Science (Hons) degree from CUHK in 1971 and a Master of
Philosophy degree in Engineering from HKU in 1982. He is
a Certified Practising Accountant of the Certified Practising
Accountant Australia (CPA Australia) since 1991, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) since 1984 and an associate of the

Chartered Institute of Management Accountants since 1977.
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Mr. MONG had previously joined the Hong Kong Civil
Service as an Executive Officer and was a Chief Treasury
Accountant when he left the Government in 1984. He had 13
years of service in various Government departments, including
Treasury, Government Secretariat and Public Works, and had
gained experience in the areas of management, accounting and
budgeting. Mr. MONG also had overseas working experience,
including one year in the HM Treasury in London, UK and

more than seven years in Australia.

Mr. MONG was the Associate Director of Finance of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (1992-
1997), the Director of Finance (1997-2007) and the Associate
Vice President (2003-2007) of PolyU and the Vice President
(Administration) and Secretary to Council of the Hong Kong
Institute of Education (currently known as “The Education
University of Hong Kong”) (2007-2014). Mr. MONG had
also served as a Government representative on the Council of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as
“HKICPA”) (1982-1984) and the Accountancy Training Board
of Vocational Training Council (1982-1983), and a member
of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) (2006-
2011). He was also the company secretary of Joint Universities
Computer Centre Limited (“JUCC”) (2011-2018).

Mr. MONG has retired from his full-time job in 2014 and is
currently serving voluntarily as the Chairman of the Board of
Management of JUCC, a director of the Causeway Bay Kai-
Fong Welfare Advancement Association and a school manager

of two kindergartens in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAM Kui Hung (“Mr. YAM”), aged 62, joined the
Group in February 1996 and is a director of a major subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. YAM was also an Executive Director of the
Company from September 2016 to February 2020. Mr. YAM
is primarily responsible for quality assessment, project risk

management and internal audit of the Group.

Mr. YAM has over 40 years of experience in the construction
industry. He obtained a higher certificate in Building Studies
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November 1982 and a
postgraduate diploma in Construction Management from the
Construction Industry Training Authority in Hong Kong in
October 1989. He is a corporate member of the HKIE.

Mr. NG Kai Chow (“Mr. NG”), aged 52, joined the Group in
October 2002, is currently a project manager of the Group and
is responsible for provision of building project management and

contract administration works of certain contract works.

Mr. NG has over 33 years of experience in the construction
industry. He obtained a postgraduate diploma in Construction
Law and Arbitration in October 2005 from the University of
Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing Education
and a diploma in Construction from the College of Estate
Management of the UK in August 2001.

Mr. CHEUNG Pak Lun (“Mr. CHEUNG?”), aged 42, joined
the Group in September 2002, is currently a project manager of
the Group and is mainly responsible for provision of building
project management and contract administration of certain

contract works projects.

Mr. CHEUNG has over 19 years of experience in the
construction industry, in particular, working experience in
private and public residential and institutional developments.
He obtained a bachelor degree in Building Engineering and
Management from PolyU in November 2002.
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Mr. LAM Yim Wang (“Mr. LAM”), aged 45, joined the Group
in May 2017, is currently a project manager of the Group
and is mainly responsible for provision of building project
management and contract administration of certain contract

works projects.

Mr. LAM has over 25 years of experience in the construction
industry, in particular, working experience in public residential
and institutional developments. He obtained a bachelor
degree of Applied Science in Construction Management
and Economics from the Curtin University of Technology of
Australia in October 2002.

Mr. HO Yue Ching Benjamin (“Mr. HO”), aged 41, joined the
Group in January 2021 as a project manager of the Group and is
primarily responsible for overseeing a property redevelopment
project of the Group.

Mr. HO is a Registered Professional Surveyor of Surveyors
Registration Board, an Authorised Person (List of Surveyors)
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. Mr. HO obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
Building Surveying and a Master of Science degree in Project
Management from PolyU in 2003 and 2008, respectively. He

has over 18 years of experience in project management.

Mr. MUI Siu Hong (“Mr. MUI”), aged 33, joined the Group
in August 2020. He has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company and financial controller of the
Group since 5 September 2020. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the financial matters and company secretarial affairs
of the Group.

Mr. MUI has over 9 years’ accounting and auditing experience
and is a member of the HKICPA. Mr. MUI obtained a bachelor
degree in Bachelor of Commerce (Major in accounting) from
the La Trobe University in March 2010. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. MUI worked in two international accounting firms.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company
is directed and controlled. The board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company is fully aware
of its importance to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) and has developed a rigorous system of
checks and balances which allows management to respond to
the strategic directions approved by the Board. This report
describes the Company’s corporate governance practices and
structures that were in place during the financial year ended
31 March 2021, with specific reference to the principles and
guidelines of the “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“The Stock Exchange”). In developing and reviewing its
corporate governance policies and practices, the Company
has sought to adopt a balanced approach. The Board believes
that a well-balanced corporate governance system enables
the Company to achieve business excellence and fulfill the

Company’s mission.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company, and the Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs and overseeing the
achievement of strategic plans to enhance Shareholders’ value.
The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function
as required under the CG Code. The Board is responsible for all
major aspects of the Company’s affairs, which includes, among
others:

e formulating key policy matters, overall strategic plans and
directions, and objectives of the Group;

e  monitoring the performance of the management of the
Group;

e appointing members and chairman to the Board and the
Board’s committees;

®* implementing and monitoring an effective framework and
systems of risk management and internal control;

®*  monitoring material transactions (including, in particular,
those which may involve conflicts of interest);

e approving interim report(s), annual report(s),
announcement(s), environmental, social and governance
report(s) and circular(s);

e considering dividend policy and advise on/determine the
declaration of final/interim dividends;

® ensuring the Company has good corporate governance
and review and monitor its policies and practices
on compliance with applicable legal and regulatory
requirements; and

e approving and monitoring other significant financial and

operational matters.

Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated to the

management under the leadership of the Executive Directors.
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As at 31 March 2021, the Board is composed of eleven

Directors, including five Executive Directors and six
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”).

Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”)
(Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (“Mr. CHEUNG”)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. IP Yik Nam (“Mr. IP”)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel (“Mr. LAU”)

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”)

INEDs
Prof. KO Jan Ming (“Prof. KO”)
(appointed on 1 February 2021)
Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (“Dr. LEE”)
(appointed on 1 February 2021)
Dr. LI Yok Sheung (“Dr. LI”)
Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy (“Ms. LEUNG”)
Ms. MAK Suk Hing (“Ms. MAK”)
Mr. MONG Chan (“Mr. MONG”)
(appointed on 1 February 2021)

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 25 to 34 of this annual
report. A list of Directors and their role and function is also
available on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice and services of
the senior management and the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. When needed and upon making
request to the Board, the INEDs may obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their duties.

The Company has arranged insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors and its officers. The insurance
coverage is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and

officers are adequately protected against potential liabilities.
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The INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three INEDs, with at least one
INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has also met the requirement of maintaining at least
one-third of members of the Board being INEDs as required by
Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The six INEDs of the Company are persons of high caliber,
with professional qualifications and experience in the fields of
engineering, education, dental and accounting and finance.
With their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.

All INEDs are appointed for a fixed specific term ranging from
one to two years. Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has received from each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE,
Dr. LI, Ms. LEUNG, Ms. MAK and Mr. MONG’s the annual

confirmations of independence.

In view of each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG’s
previous position as either an INED or a non-executive
director (“NED”) of Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(“Vantage”, a company incorporated in Bermuda and which
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
(stock code: 15) from 8 September 2000 to 22 October 2020,
was the intermediate holding company of the Company before
19 November 2020) within two years immediately prior to the
date of his appointment, and Prof. KO had served the position
for more than nine years, Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG
may be considered unable to meet certain independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules or in the
CG Code. The Board considers that Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr.
MONG are independent, for the reasons, among others, set out

below:
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(i) each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG was not
involved in the daily management and operations of
Vantage nor had he developed any business connections
with Vantage and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Vantage Group”) (including the Group) during his
tenure;

(ii) the roles and duties of Dr. LEE as a NED of Vantage were

similar to that of other INEDs of Vantage and Dr. LEE was

not involved in the daily management and operations of

Vantage nor had he developed any business connections

with the Vantage Group during his tenure;

(iii) each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG was
independent of the Vantage Group, including the Group,
during his tenure;

(iv) each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG was not entitled
to any discretionary performance-based bonus during his

tenure; and

each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG has confirmed
that he is independent to act as an INED of the Company
and met all other independence guidelines for INED.

The Company has individually assessed his/her independence
and considers all INEDs to be independent based on the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, their non-involvement in the daily operation and
management of the Group and the absence of any relationships
which will interfere with the exercise of their independent

judgment.

The Company confirms that the number of year of service of all
INEDs as a Director is less than 9 years.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular
Board meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end
of each calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan
for attendance of the meetings. Meetings will also be convened,

as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues.

Any Director who is not able to present physically may
participate at any Board meeting through electronic means of
communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication facilities, in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles”).

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the
Board to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director
may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied
by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information,
are sent to each Director not less than 7 days before the date
of a Board meeting to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any

urgent ad hoc matter.

Minutes of Board meetings are recorded in sufficient details
regarding the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached at the meetings. Draft minutes of Board meetings
are circulated to the Directors for comments and the signed
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and open for

inspection to any Director on request.
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Each Director is expected to give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company. The individual attendance
record of each Director at the regular meetings of the
Board and meetings of the Board’s committees (the “Board

”»

Committee(s)”, comprising the Company’s Audit Committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee
(the “Nomination Committee”)), and at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company (“AGM”) during the year ended 31

March 2021 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings held

T 4% #0045 T R A B4 IR [ AORE ) R B 4 )
1 B HERBRE_R_ A=+
HIbEERERGRERTLZEG((HEAR
HEl > BFAAFMNERZET([HBEZH
7)) FMEZHG(HMERT ) AU ZHE
(THAZHE)) o 1ok B A ) e 08 47

K ([ AR K 1) ) Wt s Lzl an F

W/ Ak

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
W wHE  EMZHE®  FMZHE®  R4ZHA
Executive Directors Bk
Mr. NGAI* ok 44 NJARER  N/ARER 4/4
Mr. CHEUNG RS 44 NASMER O NAREM  NJARER
Mr. IP #hk 44 NARER O NAREM  NJAKEH
Mr. LAU BlsA 44 NARER  NARER  NJARER
Mr. YAU* i i o 44 NJAREH 55 N/ARHEA
INEDs BiSL AT
Prof. KO** [EE: 6 S 171 1 1 NAREM
Dr. LEE** 2SR B ok 1/1 1/1 11 N/AZE
Dr. LI A 4/4 4/4 505 4/4
Ms. LEUNG B4t 4/4 4/4 505 4/4
Ms. MAK F4L: 4/4 4/4 5/5 4/4
Mr. MONG** S 1 11 I NARHEH

* Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU are brothers-in-law
*#*  Appointed on 1 February 2021
##% - Meeting was held on 27 November 2020

Chairman

and INEDs™

F 0 S 3L

FRfTESE

11
N/AZREH
N/AZRGEH
N/AAE H
N/ARGEH

N/ATE
N/AREH
11
11
11
N/AREH

BT A
R R AE S — R
Sl [ 7= R R

AGM
IR
BERG

1/1
1/1
1/1
11
1/1

N/ANEEH
N/AZREH
11
11
11
N/AREH
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Appointment, Re-election, Removal and Retirement of
Directors

The Board is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession of Directors and assessing the
independence of INEDs. The appointment of INEDs adheres
to the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, through the Nomination
Committee set up in January 2017, reviews from time to time
its own structure, size, composition and diversity to ensure that
it has a balance of appropriate expertise, skills, experience and
diversity for the needs of the businesses of the Group.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) since January 2017 which set out the
approach to achieve diversity of Board members. Since April
2019, the Board has also adopted a director nomination
policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) which set out the
approach and procedures the Board adopts for the nomination
and selection of Directors. A summary of each of the policies is
set out in the subsection “Nomination Committee” under the

section “BOARD COMMITTEES” in this report.

The term of office of each of the Directors has been fixed for a
specific term for not more than three years. The Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM

in accordance with the Articles.
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In accordance with the Articles, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. A retired
Director shall be eligible for re-election and reappointment
at each AGM provided that each Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The election of each candidate is done through a separate
resolution. Any new Director appointed during the year as an
addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
shall hold office only until the next coming general meeting of
the Company and shall then be subject to re-election at that

meeting.

On 1 February 2021, each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG
was appointed as an INED of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee

and the Nomination Committee.

The independence consideration of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and
Mr. MONG and related nomination procedures have been set
out in the sections headed “The INEDs” and “Board Diversity

Policy” of this corporate governance report.

On 23 June 2021, Ms. LEUNG informed the Board that she will
retire as INED of the Company and cease to be the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee after the end of
her current service contract on 31 August 2021.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. NGAI, Mr. YAU, Prof.
KO, Dr. LEE, Dr. LI and Mr. MONG shall retire from office
at the forthcoming AGM to be held on 26 August 2021 (the
“2021 AGM”). All the above retiring Directors, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election or election to serve for
another terms at the 2021 AGM. Details with respect to the
candidates standing for election as Directors are set out in the
AGM circular to Shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. NGALI served as the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. CHEUNG served as the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. This segregation
ensures a clear division of the Chairman’s responsibilities for
the management of the Board and the CEO’s responsibilities for
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman has an additional or casting vote in the

event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided by the
Board.

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to

monitor the performance of the management.

According to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Chairman met with the then INEDs of the Company for
once without the presence of the management and the other

Executive Directors on 27 November 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs.

The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established on 18 January 2017 with
specific written terms of reference stipulating its authorities and

duties, which are available on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange.

On 1 February 2021, Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, and Mr. MONG
were appointed as the new members of the Audit Committee,
following each of his appointment as an INED of the Company.
As at 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprised six
INEDs, namely Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, Dr. LI, Ms. LEUNG,
Ms. MAK and Mr. MONG. Ms. LEUNG is currently the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Each of Ms. LEUNG and
Mr. MONG possesses the appropriate accounting qualifications

and experiences in financial matters.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s report,
and to monitor the integrity of the consolidated financial
statements. It also assists the Board to oversee risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit

functions.
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The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at least twice a
year and they also meet with the Company’s external auditor
at least twice a year to discuss the audit plan and to review
the Company’s reports and accounts. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Audit Committee held four meetings and
the primarily works performed by the Audit Committee were,
among others:

e reviewed the unaudited accounts, interim report and
interim results announcement of the Company;

e reviewed the audited accounts and final results
announcement of the Company;

e reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Company and the Group;

e reviewed and recommend the appointment and
reappointment of external auditor;

e approved the scope and plan of internal and external audit;

e reviewed the engagement, services (including non-audit
services proposed to be provided by the external auditor or
its associates) provided and remuneration of the external
auditor and its independence;

e reviewed the results and effectiveness of the internal and
external audit functions;

e reviewed and monitored the adequacy and effectiveness
of the financial reporting function, the risk management
system, the internal control system and the internal audit
function of the Group;

e reviewed the continuing connected transactions;

e reviewed the “Policy for Non-audit Services provided
by the Group’s External Auditor and its Associates” and
monitored the policy’s implementation; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

It was confirmed that there was no disagreement between the
Board’s and the Audit Committee’s view on re-appointment
of external auditor, and they both recommended the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditor for the ensuing year at the 2021 AGM.
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The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 January
2017 with specific written terms of reference stipulating its
authorities and duties, which are available on the websites
of the Company and The Stock Exchange, and consists
of a majority of INEDs. The purpose of the Remuneration
Committee is to set policy on Executive Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and for fixing remuneration

packages for all Directors and senior management.

On 1 February 2021, Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, and Mr. MONG
were appointed as the new members of the Remuneration
Committee, following each of his appointment as an INED
of the Company. As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration
Committee comprised of the six INEDs, namely Prof. KO, Dr.
LEE, Dr. LI, Ms. LEUNG, Ms. MAK, Mr. MONG; and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. YAU. Dr. LI is the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structuring for Directors and senior management
and their remuneration package with reference to the Group’s
corporate goals and strategies. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the Remuneration Committee held five meetings and the
major works performed by the Remuneration Committee were,

among others:

e approved the contract/letter of appointments entered into
between the Company and individual Director(s);

e reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for remuneration of the Directors and
senior management;

e assessed performance of executive Director(s),
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration package, including discretionary
performance-based bonus, of individual Director and
senior management; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee.
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The Executive Directors and certain senior management of the
Group may entitle to discretionary performance related bonus
payments which are determined by the Board with reference
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee,
after accounting for the Group’s operating results and assessed
respective performance of the individuals. No Director was
involved in the determination about his own remuneration.
Particulars of the remuneration payable to each Director for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management (excluding the
Directors) as at 31 March 2021 by band for the year ended 31
March 2021 was set out below:
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Number of individuals

Within the band of L3 4y Pt A¥
Nil to HK$1,500,000 ZFWICE1,500,000% 70 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001 76.%3,000,0004 76 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 3,000,001 %76 %4,500,000%5 76 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 4,500,001 ¥76%6,000,000% 706 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 6,000,001 1:%7,500,000% 70 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 7,500,001 % 6 329,000,000 %5 7T -
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 9,000,001 ¥#6:%10,500,0003 70 1

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established on
18 January 2017 with specific written terms of reference
stipulating its authorities and duties, which are available on the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange, and consists
of a majority of INEDs.

On 1 February 2021, Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, and Mr. MONG were
appointed as the new members of the Nomination Committee,
following each of his appointment as an INED of the Company.
As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee is made up of
the six INEDs, namely Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, Dr. LI, Ms. LEUNG,
Ms. MAK, Mr. MONG; and one Executive Director, namely
Mr. NGAI. Mr. NGAI is the chairman of the Nomination

Committee.
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The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board; identifying individuals suitably and
qualified to become Directors; and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. The Nomination Committee meets at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination
Committee held four meetings. The major works performed by

the Nomination Committee were, among others:

e reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and made recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and putting forward nominations or
recommendations to the Board for proposed appointments
to the Board;

e assessed the independence of individual INEDs;

e reviewed time commitment of individual Directors for
performance of his/her responsibilities;

e reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors;

e reviewed the “Director Nomination Policy” and
“Board Diversity Policy” and monitored the policies’
implementation; and

e reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee.

Director Nomination Policy

The “Director Nomination Policy” sets out the approach
and procedures adopted for the nomination and selection of
directors, including the appointment of additional Directors,
replacement of Directors, and re-election of Directors to
ensure that proper approach and procedures of the selection
and nomination of Directors are in place. The “Director
Nomination Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee, as appropriate and at least annually, to ensure its

effectiveness.
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The “Director Nomination Policy” are summarised below:

Selection Criteria

When the need to select, nominate or re-elect Directors arises,

the Nomination Committee shall, as it considers appropriate,

consider a variety of factors in making nominations, including

but not limited to the following in assessing the suitability of

the proposed candidate:

reputation for integrity;

the skills, knowledge, experience and professional
expertise which are relevant to the operations of the
Group;

commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and
attention and participate in induction on appointment,
continuous professional development and other Board
associated activities;

ability to exercise sound business judgement and possess
experience in senior management;

contribute to the Board’s diversity with due regard to
the diversity perspectives set out in the “Board Diversity
Policy” of the Company; and

compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the consideration
of appointment of an INED.

Procedures and Process

for appointment of new and replacement Directors, the
Nomination Committee assesses the potential candidates
based on the selection criteria and make recommendation
to the Board. The Board has the authority on determining
suitable director candidate for appointment; and

for re-election of Directors and nomination from
shareholders, the Nomination Committee make
recommendation to the Board/shareholder such retiring

Director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
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Board Diversity Policy

The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board
will include and make good use of differences in a number of
factors, including but without limitation, gender, age, cultural,
skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the Board. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition
of the Board. All appointments of Directors will be based on
merit and the Nomination Committee will review the Board
composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity. The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee, as appropriate and at least annually,

to ensure its effectiveness.

In considering the nomination of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr.
MONG as a new INED during the year, the Board Diversity
Policy was taken into account and the relevant provision of the
Director Nomination Policy was followed. The Nomination
Committee had (i) considered, among others, the structure,
size and skill mix of the Board; (ii) taken measures to identify
potential candidates, especially those senior executives who
possess the experience and competence commensurate with
the position of a director; and (iii) the time commitment
that Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG can spend on the
INED’s role. Each of KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG, is with
extensive knowledge and experience in different fields,
including structural engineering and industrial collaboration,
dental, financial and cost management, accounting, general
management and information technology. The Nomination
Committee and the Board considered that Prof. KO, Dr.
LEE and Mr. MONG were the suitable candidates and the
appointments will contribute to diversity of the Board and
better balance of skills, experience and diversity of the Group’s

current business.
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An analysis of the Board’s composition, as classified into HEHEFR-F_Z—F=ZH=+—H WA GEANH

different aspects, on 31 March 2021 is set out below: B AHE
Aspects Board Composition
b HAAMAR
Gead Male Female
9) v
Desionad Executive Independent Non-executive
t
(5) (6)
Age group <45 45-54 55-64 05-74 >T4
FERRE (1) (3) 3 (3) (1)
Secondary or
Educational background below Undorgradte Posgradat
KEAH/ KE BRI L
i AT F/ &
() M
(1)
Construction, property & | Management & | Education& | Dental & Engineering & Construction & ‘
Account & finance
Skillsfindustry experience administration administration | management | administration education engineering -
i/ i RsR 2 B E I G FARGE | HERER | BRREH TATRRHE BEREATE ' 0
) () (1) (1) () )
No. of directorship with
other listed companies 0 |
in thi past 3 years* n 6)
PR i3]
LW AAEHZ A YA
() Number of respective Directors () rHBEERE

*

Including Vantage (as defined in this annual report) * G BRI (I AR AE T 2 48)
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT AND INDUCTION

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities
and development of the Group. The Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Group’s
development.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company continues its effort in providing
updates on the changes in the relevant regulatory requirements
applicable to the Group from time to time and recommending
relevant seminars (including webinars)/conferences/forums to
the Directors as and when appropriate.

The Directors acknowledge the need for continuous professional
development and confirmed that they had complied with the
code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with the records
of the training they received annually. According to the records
maintained by the Company, all Directors pursued continuous
professional development during the year ended 31 March 2021
and relevant details are set out below:

Directors R
Mr. NGAI itk
Mr. CHEUNG [ 50
Mr. LAU Bt
Mr. IP A
Mr. YAU iEse
Prof. KO* ISR ek
Dr. LEE* Al e
Dr. LI 2t
Ms. LEUNG R+
Ms. MAK i+
Mr. MONG* ¥

* Appointed on 1February 2021
Notes:

A — Participated in seminar(included webinars)/conferences/forums regarding
construction andfor environmental, social and governance

B -  Read jowrnals/updates/articles regarding updates on rules and regulation,
relating to listed companies, corporate governance, construction, financial,
accounting and/or taxation
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(note) (Hfat)
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On 1 February 2021, each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG
was appointed as an INED of the Company. They had received
a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package
covering, among others, the Group’s business and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company, had
been provided to them before their appointment to ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the Group’s operations,
businesses and governance policies, and are fully aware of their
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing

Rules, legal and other relevant regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

To enhance transparency of the Company in the
recommendation and declaration of dividend, the Board has
adopted a written “Dividend Policy” (the “Dividend Policy”)

which sets out the factors of determining the recommendation
and declaration of dividend since 18 March 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may consider declaring
and paying dividends to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
distributable reserves. Such declaration and payment of
dividends shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion
of the Board, subject to the requirements of all applicable
laws and the Articles (including Shareholders’ approval of the
payment of final dividend in AGM).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Board shall strike
a balance between providing immediate return to the
Shareholders through the payment of dividends whilst
retaining adequate reserves as the Group’s working capital and
for the Group’s future growth. In deciding whether to propose
or declare a dividend and in determining the dividend amount
and means of payment, the Board shall take into account,

among others:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e the capital and debt level of the Group;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and major subsidiaries of the Group; and

e the working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future development plans of the Group.
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The Board will from time to time review the Dividend Policy
and may update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at

any time as the Board deems fit and necessary.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding the Directors’ securities transactions.

Following specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2021. Full details of the Directors’ interests in the
shares of the Company are set out on pages 63 to 79 in the
“REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS?” of this annual report.

The Company has also established written code on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for dealings in the
securities of the Company by relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in
relation to the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company sent
notifications to the Directors and employees reminding them of
the “black-out period(s)” as specified in the relevant codes and
the relevant period that the Directors and relevant employees
during which they are not allowed to deal in the securities of
the Company. All Directors and employees are also bound by
corporate policies of the Company to refrain from dealing in
the Company’s securities if they are in possession of any inside

information of the Group.

EEF R

B AR i % S BOR - SAE LRR B
B b BT ~ AERT Je B R e BBOR o

o R B AT R

A2 T CLAR A LT AR B B i R i B AT A
TR R A B AR A ) (TR RSy ] ) -
Vet B R HEAT R 7 28 S P RS e U o

RARARME A ERE - i &R RS
RRE R FEAZ+—HIEER Y
A R ) R A o AR R AR 2 ] A
By v RE 25 0 2 ER RE R BUR AR R 3 B I9OE
[HEFEHRE 1N -

A2y 7] 7 TRk AT REBEA BRI AR 2 W] I R 246 B 1
R A B R BTEEIT AR AR M@ H R S EE
B RSP R > T % Y B S A B AR A R TR

RBEE_Z ==L —HIEER » KA
O A A o SRR AT A B S R
P B W Y T A% Ik A ) o A A B A B
WA P H A A W 2R o BT R A R
B2 AN TR AT BORAR > B EETAE
AT R S > RIS BB A Al i 57 o

55



56

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e X8k &

AUDITOR’ S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the
AGM held on 4 September 2020 as the Company’s external
auditor until the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

During the year, the Company also awarded non-audit services
works to Ernst & Young and its associates. Through the
Audit Committee, the Board monitors the non-audit services
performed by its external auditor and its associates to the Group
to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the external

auditor would not be impaired.

Pursuant to the “Policy for Non-audit Services provided by the
Group’s External Auditor and its Associates”, all proposed non-
audit services of the external auditor or its associates would
be reviewed by the Audit Committee before the respective
engagement. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Audit Committee reviewed the nature of non-audit services
proposed to be performed by Ernst & Young or its associates
and confirmed that these non-audit services did not give rise to
impairment of actual or perceived independence, or objectivity
of the audit work itself. The Audit Committee recommended
the Board to propose the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
as the independent external auditor of the Company for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2021, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst &

Young, and its associates is set out below:

A%
TR -
i 5 Ml 5

Audit services
Non-audit services:

Taxation services
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is to support the Board by ensuring
good information flow with the Board as well as the Board’s
policy and procedures being followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates induction and the professional development of
the Directors. The Company Secretary is a full-time employee
of the Group and reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
CEO.

Mr. MUI Siu Hong (“Mr. MUI”), appointed on 5 September
2020, is the Company Secretary of the Group and his brief
biography is set out on page 34 of this annual report. Mr. MUI
has confirmed that he has complied with all the qualifications
and training requirements under the Listing Rules. Mr. MUI is

also the financial controller of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective systems of risk management and
internal control to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the

Group’s business objectives.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, covering all the departments and
business units, to monitor, assess and manage various risks in

the Group’s business activities.
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The Group’s internal auditor conducted systematic reviews
of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended 31
March 2021 by adopting a risk-based approach and review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system according
to an internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee.
The CEO and any members of the Audit Committee may
instruct the internal auditor to undertake internal audit
activities of an urgent or sensitive nature. The internal auditor
reports directly to the Audit Committee and has free access to
review all aspects of the Group’s activities and systems. Internal
audit findings and control weaknesses identified, respective
management’s responses and follow-up plans/actions taken
have been summarised and reported to the Audit Committee at
least annually. Other Directors are also informed of the findings

and weaknesses identified.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of
approval of this annual report, the Group adopts the following
four lines of defense approach on risk management:
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Regarding the handling and dissemination of inside
information, the Company has taken appropriate measures
according to a written “Corporate Information Disclosure

y

Policy” to identify inside information and preserve its
confidentiality until proper dissemination via the electronic
publication system operated by The Stock Exchange. This
policy has been set out in a written “Employee Handbook”,
which is made available to all employees of the Group, so that
not only the senior management but all employees are aware
of this disclosure policy and their responsibilities to take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent the leakage of inside information of the Company from
time to time. Employees must also promptly bring any possible
leakage or divulgence of inside information to the attention of
the Chairman, the CEO and/or the Company Secretary, who
will notify the Board immediately accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly.

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of probity, openness, and accountability. A
whistle-blowing policy is in place for the Group’s employees
and associates of the Group’s businesses to raise concerns and
to report when anyone of them believes reasonably and in good
faith that he/she has come across fraud, malpractices, violation
of business ethics or improprieties. The policy are available on
the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee, assisted by the management and the
internal auditor, had reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management system and internal control
system for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Audit
Committee considered the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group were effective and adequate. The
Board also reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through discussion with the Audit Committee

on audit findings and internal control matters.

Both the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
of the reporting year were effective and adequate for their

purposes.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company is endeavouring to maintain a high level
of transparency in communication with Shareholders
and investors in general. The Company has adopted a
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy” on 18 January
2017, which is available on the website of the Company,
reflecting mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its Shareholders. The various channels
via which the Company communicates with its Shareholders
include interim and annual reports, information on The Stock

Exchange’s and the Company’s websites, and general meetings.

The Company’s AGM provides an opportunity for
Shareholders to communicate face to face with the Directors
about the Group’s performance and operations. The Chairman
of the Board, the Executive Directors, the INEDs, the chairman
of each of the Board Committees and external auditor of the
Company will attend AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.
Separate resolutions will be proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of

individual Directors.

The Company’s 2020 AGM was held on 4 September 2020,
Friday. The notice of the 2020 AGM, the 2019/20 annual
report and the circular containing relevant information of
the proposed resolutions of the 2020 AGM were sent to
Shareholders more than 20 clear business days before the
2020 AGM. All Directors together with majority of the
senior management and the external auditor attended the
2020 AGM. The then Company Secretary explained the poll
voting procedures at the 2020 AGM. Separate resolutions for
each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of
individual Directors, were proposed at the 2020 AGM. All the
resolutions at the 2020 AGM were dealt with by poll. The poll
results of the 2020 AGM are available on the websites of the
Company and The Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to Convene Special General Meeting

In accordance with the Articles, any Shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings shall have
the right, by written requisition served to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do
so in the same manner.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Laws or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for proposing candidate(s) for election as
director(s) at a general meeting are set out in the “Corporate
Governance” under section headed “Investor Relations” on the
website of the Group.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board at
general meetings or send their enquiries, concerns and notice
with sufficient details to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company and the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
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The external auditor of the Company acknowledged their
reporting responsibilities in its auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
80 to 88 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no change in

the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are pleased to present
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the Group’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion on
the Group’s future business development and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
are provided in the “FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY”
section of this annual report on pages 4 to 6 and the
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” section
of this annual report on pages 13 to 24. Also, the Group’s
financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements.

The Group is committed to be an environmental-responsible
corporation with the aim to conserve the environment
while making reasonable returns. The Group has operated
an environmental management system which complies with
international standards and will continuously encourage our
business partners, suppliers and sub-contractors to follow the
same standards. Further information of the Group’s policies
and performance during the year ended 31 March 2021
from the environmental perspective would be included in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company to be published within three months from the date
of publication of this annual report. During the year ended
31 March 2021, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that have significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

All references herein to other sections of this annual report or

reports form part of this report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 92 of this

annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.5 cents (2020: nil) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2021 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of shareholders of the Company on 3 September 2021,
Friday. The proposed payment of the final dividend is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
2021 annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2021.

Based on the 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
in issues as of the date of this annual report, the total dividend

amounted to HK$50,000,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on pages 4

to 6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the

audited financial statements but part of “BUSINESS REVIEW”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

The 2021 AGM of the Company will be held in Hong Kong on
26 August 2021, Thursday. Notice of the AGM will be issued
and disseminated to the shareholders of the Company (the

“Shareholders”) in due course.

To determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM, the register of shareholders of the Company will be
closed from 23 August 2021, Monday to 26 August 2021,
Thursday (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 20 August
2021, Friday.
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DIVIDEND PAYMENT AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Assuming that the final dividend recommended by the Board is
approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, for the
purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from
1 September 2021, Wednesday to 3 September 2021, Friday
(both days inclusive). During the closure period, no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31
August 2021, Tuesday. It is expected that the final dividend
will be payable to those entitled shareholders on or before 24
September 2021, Friday.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Under the Group’s internal control and risk management
framework, the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with
the responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Other than the significant
accounting judgements and estimates and the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group set out in
note 36 to the financial statements, the Group is also exposed

to other key risks factors and uncertainties, among others:

Business and Market Risk

Demand for services and products of the Group is cyclical
in nature and directly correlates with the level of real estate
development, construction activities, liquidity demands and
general economic environment in Hong Kong. The Group
relies heavily on public sector projects which by their nature
are only awarded by a limited number of customers who are
normally the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”) Government and/or various institutional bodies.
There is no guarantee that our customers will provide the

Group with new business or that we will secure new customers.
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The Group’s business and profitability may be materially
and adversely affected by failure to tender for new contract
works, any material reduction in spending by the HKSAR
Government or various institutional bodies on public sector
works and/or delay in awarding contracts of such works.
The Group has accumulated over 40 years’ experience in
construction industry, we will continue to keep a close eye on
project safety, project quality and project efficiency to ensure

we remain competitive in tendering new projects.

Construction risk

The Group is exposed to construction risk in relation
to price fluctuation, duration of works, quality of work,
environmental protection and safety requirements involved
in the construction business, which may adversely affect the
Group’s profitability. The Group tries to manage and mitigate
these risks through risk transfer, improve communication
between project teams and project estimation and procurement
departments, and implementation of management systems

which meet international standards.

Compliance Risk

The Group is exposed to compliance risk in relation to various
rules and regulations, including but not limited to rules and
regulations in relation to construction labour, occupational
health and safety, environmental protection, contractor
registration and listing in Hong Kong. Non-compliance may
causes serious legal sanctions, material financial loss, or loss
to reputation and loss of business to the Group. The Group
paid high attention to the enactment and amendment of
laws and regulations which may cause legal or business risks
to the Group’s business and will arrange appropriate training
and experience sharing activities for relevant employees. The
Group also launched a safety promotion campaign “Safety
e My Habit” since 2017 to promote safety awareness and
continuously invest in the provision of appropriate self-
owned safety tools to sub-contractors or suppliers in high risk
operations.
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Risk on Reliance of Key Management Personnel

The Group’s success and growth depends on our ability to
identify, hire, train and retain suitable, skilled and qualified
employees, including management personnel with the requisite
industry expertise. The Directors and members of senior
management, in particular, the Executive Directors, are
important to the Group. If any of the Executive Directors cease
to be involved in the management of the Group and the Group
is unable to find suitable replacements in a timely manner,
there could be an adverse impact on our business, results of
operation and profitability of the Group. The Group manages
this risk by providing competitive remuneration packages and
benefits which including discretionary performance-related
bonus, incentive travels and subsidies for education and
training programmes.

Business Partners Risk

The Group relies on third-party sub-contractors and service
providers in certain parts of its business. The management
realises that such operational dependency may pose a threat of
vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service including
reputation damage, business disruption and monetary losses. In
addition, some of the Group’s businesses are conducted through
joint ventures/joint operations in which the Group shares
control and risks with other business partners. The relevant
risks include that these business partners may not continue
their relationships with the Group, do not work for the Group’s
interest, take actions against the Group’s interest, undergo a
change of control or not fulfil their obligations under the joint
ventures/joint operations. To address such uncertainties, the
Group only engages/cooperates with reputable and experienced
business partners and closely monitors their performance.

Cyber and Information Security Risk

Frequency of cyber-attacks like sophisticated phishing
campaigns and ransomware continued increased in recent years.
The potential threat of a cyber-attack is increasing. Cyber-
attacks may lead to loss of information, leakage of confidential
information, unavailability of systems and disruption of
operation that significant costs may be required for data
recovery and system restoration, and/or possible claims. The
Group manages this risk by implement security measures such
as firewall, anti-spam and anti-virus protection, and increase
internal communication of cyber and information security

threats to raise staff awareness.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

R

A 1 AT BN L i il B

ACER I R BB PR R M A £ - S -
AR B~ A B R B - B
R #ATRE RN E AL - HFE LR
HEEME U LR ATES) HRMIEWEL -
FEMZEPTER HRAHS BT HALE -
T A% 45 1 AR B % IR B 75 0 5 R AR 388 - BT e
ACER I SEBE - RO SRR B BE ) 3 A 3
B o AR [ IO B A TR v N ) B A
LG R BUACAL - B0 i 305 S R e Bl B Bl
st ) A A B R

e 2 2501

AR AR 58 = 7 43 1) v R 5 B G vl 3t T
HR T WY SER o A BRI VE L AR R A M s 4
AR I A M 2 K 2 ol ) B A2 I > A B %
BIAMGEE - BIFREZE - EH P B RS RE
Koo BLAh 5 AR A S B DA A A S LR AL
HEAT > Bt SE R e 2 4 e R JE B o A R L
W 0 495 - 2% S SR A RO R LA AR R A L 5 AR
BAR ~ ANUAAGE IR S5 AT 1 A R IR
AUATE) ~ o) 48 8 O RO R AT LR 58 3 3L
W] A L BT S - SHEABAMEER - A
A5 90185 S LS O LA AR RS B
fE - WEE Y BRI -

4k B fi VK 2 R

HTARAR > A8 A 0 £ B 3 3 e 5 R Y A e R
MBS A T8 S > T A8 #0082 v 8 A L Bt A B2 H
R o AT I BERER - WiRikEE
B~ BB S R o BB R X R AR
JRAANE - JF/BCAT RE T BRI o AR SR [ i T i
7 A~ 5 35 K P A 9 7 R o S 2 A I 2R
P E — SR > I R A A A S B K
2R W DL AR e B TG

67



68

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AW

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2021 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share
capital, issued share capital and share options during this year.
Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital
and share options are set out in note 27 and 28 to the financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) or laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$626,739,000 (31
March 2020: HK$595,356,000).

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and
other purposes of HK$3,347,000 (2020: HK$8,201,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the importance of maintaining good
relationships with customers, suppliers and sub-contractors
to achieve its long-term business growth and development.
Accordingly, the Group has kept good communications
and shared business updates with business partners when
appropriate.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue earned from the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
99.8% (2020: 98.5%) of the total revenue and revenue earned
from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 32.4% (2020: 38.2%). Two (2020: three) out of
the five largest customers are from the public sector. The Group
has not entered into any long-term framework agreements with

any of these major customers.

Costs paid to the Group’s five largest suppliers/subcontractors
accounted for approximately 18% (2020: 25%) of the total
subcontracting charges and material costs incurred for the
year. Costs paid to the largest supplier/subcontractor included
therein accounted for approximately 4% (2020: 11%).

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of approval of

this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) (Chairman)

Mr. CHEUNG Ho Yuen (“Mr. CHEUNG?”) (Chief Executive
Officer)

Mr. IP Yik Nam (“Mr. IP”)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel (“Mr. LAU”)

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”)
Prof. KO Jan Ming (“Prof. KO”) (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Dr. LEE Man Piu Albert (“Dr. LEE”) (appointed on 1 February
2021)

Dr. LI Yok Sheung (“Dr. L1”)

Ms. LEUNG Yuen Shan Maisy (“Ms. LEUNG”)

Ms. MAK Suk Hing (“Ms. MAK”)

Mr. MONG Chan (“Mr. MONG”) (appointed on 1 February
2021)

At the 2021 AGM to be held on 26 August 2021, Mr. NGAI,
Mr. YAU and Dr. LI shall retire from office in accordance with
article 108 of the Articles. In accordance with article 112 of
the Articles, Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG, each was
appointed as an INED by the Board with effect from 1 February
2021, shall hold office until the closing of the Company’s next
general meeting, i.e. the 2021 AGM. All the retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election or election
to serve for another term at the 2021 AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs
Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received from each of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE, Dr. LI, Ms.
LEUNG, Ms. MAK and Mr. MONG’s annual confirmation of

independence.

The Board considers all of the INEDs are independent in
accordance with related Listing Rules. The independence
consideration of Prof. KO, Dr. LEE and Mr. MONG has been
set out in the section headed “The INEDs” on page 38 of this

annual report.

Y
TAASAE B T BB ACHR 5 2 AR A > A
FRHE R

Py
Bk ME S ([ B ) (/7))
i IRSe A (TR ]) (T B4 #)

TS A (T35 2k 1)
B HESEA (T 3964 1)
e B St A (T i S 2k )

B e AT 8 g (S e AT # e D)

AR (( R (R =FZ—F /] —H
HEZAT)

BEREAE((FERED) (RZFZFZH—H
HZAT)

R L (T3 1)

R 1 (M4 d: 1)

WMLt (T A ])

SBERE(TREE ) (R ZFEZF 2 HHE
ZfE)

FEF R )N AR F
TR RROHAE R b B~ Wk A
AR AR S5 108OIR R 3 o RUBAC A F] 2 4
RSS20k - WBER - R ARG (Y HEEFR
TR B L ERTES > AF 42—
Ht A 30) Z AR AN F T R R g (B =%
TR RAUB AR R ) SEAS Z I o BT DA BB
FHR A BB R T A AR R
R AT SRR AR

388 51 e BT 38 P e

AR LA S5 13 0 A ) TR R -
BEAE - L BRL - FRERFRAESE
4 0

o w2 Ol S R B i S B 8 e o A o
CV NSRS EVE SE L A
AR REEISE Y [ SL IR BT H S | o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Covenantors (as defined in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 26 January 2017 (the “Prospectus”)) has
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the
Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition

have been complied with by the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 34 of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts as further detailed in section headed
“RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” below, no Director
nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the Group’s business to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for contract of service with the executive Directors, no
contract by which a person undertakes the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

Company’s business was entered into or subsisted during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director and officer shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur in or sustain by
the execution of his/her duty or otherwise in relation thereto.
The Company has maintained appropriate insurance cover for
the Directors and officers in connection with the discharge of

their responsibilities throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 March 2021, Mr. NGATI’s son, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin, aged
over 18, is a director of Lanon Development Limited (“Lanon
Development”), Lanon Construction Limited (“Lanon
Construction”), Lanon Building Limited (“Lanon Building”),
Lanon Architectural Limited (“Lanon Architectural”) and
Lanon Engineering Limited (“Lanon Engineering”), all
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaging in construction,

maintenance and engineering contract works.

Meanwhile, Ms. WONG Chui Yee, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin’s
wife and Mr. NGAI’s daughter-in-law, aged over 18, is also
a director of Lanon Development. As at 31 March 2021, Mr.
NGAI Wing Yin holds 100% beneficial interest in Lanon
Development, Lanon Construction, Lanon Building, Lanon

Architectural and Lanon Engineering.

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and any
Director (including Mr. NGAI who is an Executive Director,
Chairman of the Board and a controlling shareholder of the
Company), such Director will be required to abstain from
discussion and voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group’s business independent of, and at arm’s

length, from the business of Mr. NGAI.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates is interested in
any business which competes or was likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, details of the interests and short positions
of each of the Director and chief executive of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
as required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under provisions of the SFO); or required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO;
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares of the Company:

Capacity and

Director nature of interests

H X4y B Ml 4 Pk

Mr. NGAI (note (i)

Interest in a controlled corporation

A (Mt (i) A Z ek P RE AR
Mr. CHEUNG Personal

RS A (PN

Mr. LAU Personal

Bl (ZUN

Prof. KO Personal

[ZE €23 ([EUN
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Number of share capital of
Shares interested the Company
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(note (ii))

(et (i)

1,500,000,000 75.000
66,857 0.003

300,000 0.015

28,000 0.001
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Notes:

(i)  These Shares are legally and beneficially owned by Golden Lux Holdings
Limited (“Golden Lux”, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability and the entire issued share capital
of which is wholly-owned by Golden More Limited (“Golden More”, a
company incorporated in the BVI and the entire issued share capital of
which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. NGAI)). Accordingly,
Mr. NGALI is interested in the 1,500,000,000 Shares held by Golden Lux,
under the SFO.

(ii) The percentages showing in the table are approximates.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company and its associated
corporations had no outstanding share options granted to the
Directors to subscribe for the securities of the Company and its

associated corporations

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES” above,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouses, or children to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 31 August 2018 (the “Scheme”) are set out in

note 28 to the financial statements.

From the date of the adoption of the Scheme up to the date of
approval of this annual report, the Company did not grant any

share options under the Scheme.

Save as the Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group during this year or subsisted at the end of this

year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the following
persons and companies (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in
the Shares and the underlying shares of the Company which
fell to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of the
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long Positions in the Shares:

3 B DR #Hy i 2 i

REFZFEEAZ1H o RS R
A1 57 33 6 0 ML A2 T 8 I A A W) 2 T A L I R i
> AR AL RAF (RN R #E SRR RITBA R
BRAI ) T A2 ) Je Aoy B A B Fe v A AL 6 i 2 I
SO R A9 58 X VIR 55 2 B 5 3 43 ¥ AUk SO 1) AR A ]
W ER e SR IR A

TS 2 wi) B Ay B 4F A
% of issued
share capital
Number of of the
Shares held Company

ZESRR ¥ M T A Nk Ly
By ¥ H JB A Ay e

1,500,000,000 75
1,500,000,000 75
1,500,000,000 75

Name of shareholders Notes Capacity and nature of interests

B W LE 4 /5 W e S0y Bobife Pk BT

Golden Lux (i) Beneficially owned

&N JEE-E X PN

Golden More (i) Interested in a controlled

St B e 2 R 25

Ms. CHENG Wai Chun (ii) Corporation

(“Ms. CHENG”) Interested in a controlled corporation and

interest of spouse

WEZLZ+ (&t ]) Ve 3 VR o % AP RE 2

Notes:

(i)  Golden Lux is wholly-owned by Golden More. As such, Golden More is
deemed to be interested in the 1,500,000,000 Shares owned by Golden
Lux under the SFO.

(ii) Ms. CHENG is the spouse of Mr. NGAIL. Ms. CHENG is deemed to be
interested in the 1,500,000,000 Shares held by Golden Lux under the
SFO.

i
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no other
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares and
the underlying shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFQO, or who, as at 31 March 2021, was directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other member of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
with the companies controlled by Mr. NGAI and a subsidiary
of joint venture. These mainly relate to contracts entered
into by the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on
an arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements. The transactions with the companies
controlled by Mr. NGALI also constitute de minimis continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined mandatory provident fund schemes
(the “MPF Schemes”), which have been registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees (including the Executive Directors). Assets of the
MPF Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to
the rules of the MPF Schemes, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions at rates specified in the
MPF Schemes. The only obligation to the Group with respect
to the MPF Schemes is to make the required contributions

under these schemes.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the public
as at the date of approval of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had no

disclosure obligation pursuant to Rules 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant event relevant to the business or
financial performance of the Group that has come to the
attention of the Directors subsequent to the year ended 31
March 2021 and up to the date of approval of this annual

report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “OUTLOOK” under the
section “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” of this annual report
for an indication of the likely future development in the

Group’s business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information on
the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” contained in this annual report.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and recommended to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as external auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of
ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3
EY-

To the shareholders of Able Engineering Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 192, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

J8 i R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
B S e ()

Key audit matter

B A it 90

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AV A7 7 w05 Jon o o I I B i e R

Accounting for construction contracts

BRG] P

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s
revenue and costs recognised for contract works
amounted to approximately HK$3,705 million and
HK$3,558 million, respectively.
BREZRZ-HF=ZA=Z+—HILEE - BHEERGH
RS w2 A WO\ e B AR 43 3 49 37.05 4 Wk 0T J 35,58 f s
It o

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time using the output method, based
on direct measurements of the values transferred
by the Group to the customers with reference to
the certified values of works performed up to the
end of the reporting period. The contract costs are
recognised when work is performed, together with any
provision for expected future losses.

HEHREEEFHHBRARBEEZT R BEENE
FERMEME - K2FHEREH AR CIHE T2 K Z%EH
H o B LA — B RE B O HE R o 5 A9 AR Y TR it
TR SR [ A A0 A 20 o 18 8 A B2 o

The Group’s revenue and costs for contract works
were significant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the recognition of profit
on construction contracts required significant
management judgement and estimate, particularly
in forecasting the costs to complete a contract, in
valuing contract variations, claims and potential
liquidated damages and in estimating the amount of
expected future losses.
HAEMMEHTRBARRARY SR EMERE
i H R R S A0 v A T R KA M) B B A
At JUHR B SEH A AR RA - A HEL - MR K
TBAE R R WG EAT AN E - DA RAGFH IR 2R s H i o

We performed the following procedures in relation to
the recognition of revenue and costs for construction

contracts:

FAM Ot 2 s S A B A BT A R R

o understanding and evaluating the Group’s
process and control over contract revenue
and contract costs recognition and budget
estimation;

° TR R A AR B R A A B A AR DA
B Al s P A R R e ]

o testing the calculation of the revenue and

profit recognised from construction contracts;

. PRt S A e R O B R T R B 5

° agreeing the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation to
the employers’ latest architect certificates;

o Iv] 725 56 4 AT I T o 0 Yy e 5 s o 2 I A0 A
A2 E

° discussing with management and the respective
project teams about the progress of major
projects and the estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract costs,
including estimated costs to completion and
assessment of potential liquidated damages for
major contracts; and

° A5 P g N hH R T I R e I O R DL
TEU A 40 B A BT R A0 0 A6 R BB - B AN R R
TSA B LB B VAL B A A APl 5 &%
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Key audit matter

BH k% it g0

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AV A7 7 05 Jon o o I I B i e O

Accounting for construction contracts (continued)

B A0t IE P (A)

The accounting policies and disclosures for the
revenue and costs of construction contracts are
included in notes 3, 4, 6 and 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A B A AW BB AR T BOR R R - R S
BB FES ~ 4~ 6T ©

o testing the supporting documents of the
budgets and actual costs incurred on a sampling
basis, which include sub-contracting contracts,
material purchase contracts/invoices and price
quotations, etc.

° R0 R PR B T B A AR R W S B
A FIEH) ~ WG 4, B 5 RO o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

TSR 4598 P 0 A 8

HAREREHLME LA - HUEE S5
R ER ARG R - BASREES MBHER R
A A B o

T E A B R R AR
AN IR A B % 5 SO AR B AR AT P T KA Bl A

N
2A
i ©

RN SR A B R RS - FA A
JE B AL B o FERLBAR T - I B R
7 BRLAR Fr 1 5 e sk AN 7 7 R P BT T AR Y
A DUAF 72 T ACH ) o 3 A At L F oL P A7 A T
REHAFED o FRRMTHATH TAE - WK
48 25 0 2 LA £ B AR A TR B i > RN
B o AiE T > RATRA LT -

o 28 £ B R AURIE I AT

A SO R A W A A P v T
oty i F) 2 At 4 R A1) Y 0 8 AL SR A I BT
O SR ER G P B AR > M B IL T T 1 A
A A A S A7 AE H R IR B T B TR
SR T B R B LR o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

¥ 3k B b o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

¥ 3k B b o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Mr. WONG Cheuk Keung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

23 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L0Ss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B v 4 2k B B0t 2 i O A %

Year ended 31 March 2021 #E_FE_-—4E=H=-"1—HILE}E

2021 2020
e e e St 2: 3
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF#x F#x
REVENUE WA 6 3,705,241 1,547,841
Contract costs B HI A (3,558,208) (1,391,313)
Gross profit BV 147,033 156,528
Other income and gains Ho A e A B 2% 6 24,802 13,940
Administrative expenses BB (65,180) (90,292)
Other expenses HoAth B 3% - (40,588)
Finance costs g g 8 (8,350) (1,320)
Share of profits and losses of AL &8 IR AR
joint ventures 14,485 1,328
PROFIT BEFORE TAX I B vy 6 ) 7 112,790 39,596
Income tax expense B9 Bi B 2 11 (18,090) (15,621)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AE A 94,700 23,975
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Al 2 i 4 2k
Other comprehensive loss that may be A AR 1 AT BE E R 4 i E
reclassified to profit or loss in i= {1 B R T TE = B
subsequent periods:
Share of other comprehensive loss of JEA; 54 A 36 i 2 T HEL R
joint ventures - (1,766)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 4 iy H:fib 4 v 45 2%
FOR THE YEAR - (1,766)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 P 4 i e A 28 %
FOR THE YEAR 94,700 22,209
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B 2 B S0tk 2 i O A %

Year ended 31 March 2021 #E_FE_-—4E=H=-"1—HILE}E

2021 2020
TR AR TR RAE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ik T#x T#x
Profit for the year attributable to BEA W R # AL A i A
owners of the parent 94,700 23,975
Total comprehensive income for BA W F5 0 F EAEN
the year attributable to owners of 2 TH WA Ja A
the parent 94,700 22,209
EARNINGS PER SHARE B2 5 W A A B AN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY %R &#)
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted (HK cents) TS R (AL 4.74 1.20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PoOSITION

7, N
gl P 3 N S
31 March 2021 ZHE_Z—4#=H=4+—H
2021 2020
TR e S S8
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF#x F#x
NON-CURRENT ASSETS F U B ¥ e
Property, plant and equipment LE DR T Y 14 1,185,004 618,512
Investment in joint ventures NEBAFENIRE 16 88,606 89,121
Financial assets at fair value through YA A AR 25 B Sl ¥ 2
profit or loss 21 5,137 -
Deferred tax assets BIERLIE & 26 217 217
Total non-current assets IR B A R 1,278,964 707,850
CURRENT ASSETS L ) 2 e
Accounts receivable T W 2k 18 203,611 201,272
Contract assets HHIBEE 19 521,027 218,845
Prepayments, other receivables and FEATFRIE ~ ARG %
other assets HoAlh % A& 20 44,835 58,388
Tax recoverable A W [l A JE 955 8,165
Restricted cash % PR ) Bl 4 22 110,000 110,000
Cash and cash equivalents Bla kBl &S HEY 22 904,933 616,645
Total current assets LBl B AR 1,785,361 1,213,315
CURRENT LIABILITIES i) 14
Accounts payable JEAHHR 3 23 430,552 314,936
Tax payable AT AR IE 9,935 919
Other payables and accruals oA B A ik M E5HE 24 447,974 222,234
Interest-bearing bank loans AR SR AT Bk 25 340,250 121,517
Total current liabilities M UN=EiE LI 1,228,711 659,606
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B A 556,650 553,709
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 5 e 48 A0 U T £
LIABILITIES 1,835,614 1,261,559
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7 N
AWM BN R
31 March 2021 = _Z—4#=H=4+—H
2021 2020
TR e S S8
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A TF#x F#x
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ i 85 i 9 3% 1) £ %
LIABILITIES 1,835,614 1,261,559
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEE B 145
Interest-bearing bank loans A e RIT &k 25 482,000 -
Other payables At JFE A 2K 24 4,071 6,716
Total non-current liabilities R B £ 4 Ha 486,071 6,716
Net assets % 1,349,543 1,254,843
EQUITY )
Equity attributable to owners R R B AL RERR
of the parent
Issued capital T AT AR 27 20,000 20,000
Reserves Tt 29 1,329,543 1,234,843
Total equity A RERS 1,349,543 1,254,843

NGAI Chun Hung
B e
Director

#HF

CHEUNG Ho Yuen

e O

Director

#HF



Year ended 31 March 2021

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SRR LR S )R

BEZFE T AFEZ = HILERE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BN R A
Issued Share Capital Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
CEARA  RAEE  EARE  LOREE REEN fl £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
(note 29(b))  (note 29(c))
(Hit20m)  (Ht29(c)
At 1 April 2019 REZ—fAENA—H 20,000 574,485 (36,742) 1,766 153,125 1312,634
Profit for the year Ay - - - - 23,975 23,975
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  4£ L2 W% :
Share of other comprehensive loss of — JEf &8 A% M 21
joint ventures % - - - (1,766) - (1,766)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EREHRA/ (R]%)
for the year k] - - - (1,766) 23,975 22,209
2018/19 final dividends ZF )/ AR
BB - - - - (80,000) (80,000)
At31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020  RZBZREZA=+—HRK
ZECFENA-H 20,000 574,485°  (36,742) = 697,100 1,254,843
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A K 2 WA
for the year M - - - - 94,700 94,700
At 31 March 2021 Ro-FZ—HE=ZA=4—H 20,000 574,485° (36,742) - 791,800° 1,349,543

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$1,329,543,000 (2020: HK$1,234,843,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

% S Al A AL B T IR L AR 9 Y B R A
1,329,543,000¥ 76 ( =R R4 1 1,234,843,0009%

Jo) ©
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EOBEREAR
Year ended 31 March 2021 #E -F - —F=H="1—HILFEE
2021 2020
e Stk RRE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it T#7x T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ## %82 Bl 4 ifi it
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax s i iy v A1 112,790 39,596
Adjustments for: BE N3 45 38 H A R -
Finance costs A E 8 8,350 1,320
Share of profits and losses of joint AL &8 A IR
ventures (14,485) (1,328)
Interest income FLEMA 6 (4,064) (10,658)
Depreciation of owned assets A& & 7 585 1,823
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 155 PR 3 7 B BT 8% 7 51,431 29,202
Loss on derecognition of a building #ALER A R RN
held for redevelopment — MM I R 7 - 40,588
Gain on disposal of items of property, MY - WSS GRHEIER Z
plant and equipment i€ 6 (20) (70)
Fair value loss on a derivative A G imh T H A AP IR R
financial instrument 7 - 21
Fair value loss on financial assets at NP RN AR AR 0 4l
fair value through profit or loss BENAFEEEK 7 1,159 -
155,746 100,494
Decrease in accounts receivable JRE WAL Rk ik A 114,946 9,631
Increase in contract assets BRIE M (419,467) (99,562)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEAFakIE - HoAhEWGK K
other receivables and other assets HAb& EwWA (B n) 11,955 (11,149)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable  JEAFERZKIG I~ (384>) 115,616 (17,995)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables LAt JFE A 35k B RE 5T 2
and accruals W, (W) 207,517 (173,748)
Cash generated from/(used in) B () 284
operations 186,313 (192,329)
Interest received B @ilpsS 5,662 13,776
Interest paid EfF B (8,082) (1,320)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AT I 5 H (1,864) (36,124)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & EHNE, (FiH)=Z
activities B 4 it B VA 182,029 (215,997)




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASsH FLows

HEBEHRER
Year ended 31 March 2021 #E_-F - —FE=/J=1—HILFEE
2021 2020
R4 R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 TF# T
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & EHNE, (FiH)=Z
activities B4 B A 182,029 (215,997)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING #%E# B4R it
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, plant and 3§42 - HEES Rk IE H
equipment 14 (582,946) (3,226)
Return of investment from a — &8 A RIE B R
joint venture 15,000 15,000
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - S LR HIEE
property, plant and equipment Fr Ak IE 20 70
Purchase of financial assets at fair value i B #& A FEFH AHEHZE M
through profit or loss A RhE A (6,296) -
Increase in restricted cash 2 B B 4 38 m 22 - (110,000)
Net cash flows used in investing BEEBHZBEERETH
activities (574,222) (98,156)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  @¥% %P2 Bl 4 it
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans R ERAT Bk 1,684,038 419,692
Repayment of bank loans BRI R R (981,805) (298,552)
Dividends paid XL 95 - (80,000)
Principal portion of lease payments FHE A sk 2 AR 454 30(b) (21,752) (7,179)
Net cash flows from financing activities BIEEBMHZHESREBH 680,481 33,961
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN B4 RBL&Z[WMMm, (WD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &4 288,288 (280,192)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 4FE#] Z B4 MR EZEY
of year 616,645 896,837
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4ER2ZB4 EB &%
AT END OF YEAR 904,933 616,645
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH 814 K Bl &5 &5 b 2 2 b
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 FRAT A R 22 904,933 276,645
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCIH & W FE 3k - 340,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BEfaRIm B e Rk
the statement of cash flows bR (kY] 904,933 616,645
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Able Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are publicly traded on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company
is located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally

engaged in building construction and repair, maintenance,

alteration and addition (“RMAA”) works.

On 19 November 2020, Profit Chain Investment Limited,
the then immediate holding company of the Company,
disposed its entire equity interest in the Company to
Golden Lux Holdings Limited (“Golden Lux”, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and
wholly-owned by Golden More Limited (“Golden More”,
a company incorporated in BVI)). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Golden Lux
have become the intermediate holding company of the
Company since 19 November 2020; and Golden More has
become the ultimate holding company of the Company

accordingly.

1.

2 i) B4 R ORE
ZRTRRERARAF (TARAF ) 2 — 5K
P2 A R ML 2 R A - B R A
WA G A AR (TBRE P 1) EMRA B
BUE o A W] kI R A Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° X2 ]
Z BB WA R AL T8
15555 °

TAEEFE P > A4 ) B SL W JE A W (AR
Ay (AR ) R ST S A s - IR
o o o (TRMAA L) Tf% -

NI BREST A TIUE o AR
M A 2 ¥ B A F] Profit Chain Investment
Limited M Golden Lux Holdings Limited
(I Golden Lux ] » — [H] 1 3% J& 4 A5 3X B &
(1 20 ) e 8 5 B 1) G B A W] > il
Golden More Limited ([ Golden More | > —[#]
B Ja A A R O e M BT B A W) A B
A ) B A A ] 2 TR RERE o ARy E]
F([#ET )% > Golden LuxH ZF F4E
T H I B B AR ) R A ]
i Golden More P i 5 % AR 2 w) B d5¢ #8428 ik
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 5 B B ik

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2w &EEER (%)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries 15 B BB A 6l 2 & B

K4 7 T ZE ] A FFEAE A F

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ to the Company
registration and ANEEGRESRE ) Principal
Company name business Issued share capital Direct Indirect  activities
R A &
R Be S5 b i AT R AR Hik P R
Able Engineering Hong Kong HK$12,300,000 - 100 Building
Company Limited Ordinary construction
HK$11,600,000 and
Non-voting deferred maintenance
(note (i))
TR TRA AT LR e i LS5 VTS
12,300,000# 70
e R 2% 0 A e A7y
11,600,000% 78
(Htat i)
Able Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100 Building
construction
TR G R AT g W48 K 10,000 # T LS
Able Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary - 100 Building
maintenance
TR EARAF U T i 1 e T RAE
Able Maintenance Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary - 100 Building
Company Limited construction
and
maintenance
LA R R 4388 10,0009 70 My S A
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=+1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Company name business Issued share capital
R A &

R Y EI T AT R AR

Able Building Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary

Construction Limited

BRI PR F] g W i 1 T

Bright Wind Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary
Limited (note (ii))

W JEAT B2 W) (i (1)) B B M 1T

Grand Superb Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary

Grand Superb Limited SR w1

Notes:

(i) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the

company or to participate in any distribution on winding-up.

(ii) As at 31 March 2021, the equity interest of this subsidiary was
pledged to a bank to secure a bank loan with a carrying amount of
HK$482,000,000 granted to the Group (note 25).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

2w B 4 MBERL (41)

A7 B B IS 2 ) 2 R ()

A4 ] EEEHRTA AT ¢ ()

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AAHEMNBERR H 4 Principal

Direct Indirect  activities

H W RERH

- 100 Building
construction
and

maintenance

M 2R AR

- 100 Property holding

LE ST

- 100 Investment
holding
BB e B

=
F!‘-“k’

08 5 27 AR 922 J 1 RO S O A BB G
ClE SN s RUPAE S SN
A B SIRER] > 82 BT AT 48 2R 1Y
REF o

—
=

(i) RZFZ4FE=H=1—H > ZHELAAH
JBEREE R0 T SR AT o AR Sy AS 42 0 Fr 4 % M i
A %5 482,000,000 ¥ JG 1 SR AT B 3k Z 5 1R (B
#E25) o

ER RS LR A W A W A
PERRBAH BB H R A LM E A F a2z |
KRSy o T R ik 51 H A B R > WD R
1% - R R R IUR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZHE_Z—4#=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for a life insurance
policy and a derivative financial instrument which have
been measured at fair value, and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1 Hiak e

%S B T ARt A g ([ R
kb2 € 1) A B A B R R B ([ A
8 U O W ) | O vl 555 i A A T S
FAER A Eh R ([l e ) &
PERE) o WO R R U R o A ] R A
PR $9 2 W2 T A .

B N 5 R B DR B 45 A4 4 i T L 45 A P AT
A - % S R AR T 8 TR R R i A
B o MBHER DI ([H )51k > k5
BB - P A3 A B S R T
B T#xl) -

A B T S AR LR AR A ) % L Jig 4 LA &
SR EEAE A Bk BB
2 o Y O W) i SR A R L T 4 4 ) Y
T (SR - MAKEZR 2 81
W Ty S5 T = S RE IS B T 1Y
AT R > ELA BB AT B A B D IR
VARG TR e i > SO 5% O e A o 0 M 4
AR B B R 7 A 45 T 4 R i 4 O A TR
WHEHIRES))

99



100

Annual Report 2020-2021 £ %

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 e i ik

31 March 2021 = _Z—4#=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

2.1 SR (4)

B e (M)

i AR 2 ) L4 B TR 422 B ) A i O B S
SRR A R RS W > 15 RF A A2 R
BE I RGAREN W - AR EGEE A
IR o T R 0L - 4

(a) BEHHHE T EMEFEEREENEGH
ZHE s

(b) ARGEILA G K L HEFT A HIRER] 2 K

() A A 1 S R B A AR S o

WEF g 2~ ) B A A ) W B R S IR )
S BR P — BUfrat BOR SRR o B 2 ) S A
SR B U e 2 FOR AR Bt AT - g
BURR AR 2 0% 5 PR i R A 1k 2 IR 2 ko

AR 25 R LAt 2 TG WA I % AEL G 2 T it e
AHR B A R R B R I B A > B L
G| IR B RE SR A R A BB e FTE R
A TR A R - B - O - B R
ACHR )R B 2 W [ 32 5 A A v B i ¥ A A
AR H R 2B -

A 25 B R D RS b = e R i —
TE R 2 TR Y B ) > A 55 O o HEORT REAG ST
T A SRR T B TR IR o — [T PRI 2 W
P R R i % A 5 B S JHE O 5 e ) U
Ye R RE2E 2 5 Bk -



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of
the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 issued by HKICPA and the
following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKERS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

$Uh 5 A e ik

e

2.1 HEE (4)

By MR ()

Ay A 4 1 2 2 38— 1 fF Jo5 2 R0 A e - B
JE o s e R (1) W PR D A (R RE R
B KA 5 (i) R IE 2 B E 25 0 W T B
(iii) P REZS RO BRI BT A0 5 2580 5 iR
(i) BT AR A AP 5 (i) BT R B AR AT 48 8 11
oA B (iid ) AT B 0k 2 A Y AR BB i &
AR o o mirp e fth 2 T A PO R A AR 4R
[EE] A AL R 4 A R AR S D B
A BAE A A BT AR A ) B e > E
S B SAREEA (@A) -

2.2 Frt Ok R P i B E)
A AR [ L AR I 2 T B R A 1 R A A

B wt A = F — E B
HEZE T B ARG T A o S 2 o B

FEMBR A EF A

(B7TA)

BB RGN - ALY #
FBETHER 395 R
F M BRI T
(3T A4)

FBMB RSB 165 HCovid 9B £ HH
(B7TA) (12 Hit741)

TR ERAE AN EE
TSRS (BT A)
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31 March 2021 Z®RZ—4E=H=+—H
2.2 il R Be b % 2 U5 ) (480

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and provides assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the
standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new
chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition
of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It
also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.

F— JIE BT S HER DL R AT

==

8 B 255 i ot i ) g e L % B B RO R O

(a)

B AR T R R A ([ B S HE
20 1) R Sk 25 o o B ) BB T —
MR o M B R AR R 3
A BORSBEIR 51 > b B BT A A BELAR
AR o BERAESE 65 A B st A
etk T 85 SURRORT BB > A B R R
A LR AR 5] > DA RBEHT T B
B 0 B R R B o SRR
S5 W A B AR A0 S e E
A8 3 85 ek TR AE T o BERRAEZR I I o
SUI > 5 B ] REE A S o AR
AT s A S SR 2 | o BES
0 A AR 1] 1 S 551K L S 3 B I AT
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide

(c)

additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set
of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions
or other events that occurred on or after 1 April 2020.
The amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group

does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

$Uh 5 A e ik

e

2.2 FrulBOR Bk % e A2 W) ()

(b) 7o 4 1 5 e o ¥ JU) 5 3 9% (A& 3T A ) 8

Benl WA B SE B R A BAMR 5| o % 5%
ERTRET - AR — e
W RERENS - HoHEE S BETH]
Iv) 36 A1) 225 HhY Y 8 0 At K T RR A
NEWE S E BT o 7265 7 2 A
7 A BT A A R R R Y L
o IS HEB AL o W F T
R B 7 B 1 15 2 B A R A IR 6
Be i A8 2 Fh A REAY o RZ > D
TBCAE P B A5 B4 i U % P S Y R
308 A 7 6 [ 0% 7 ) A B g Al e
HORERK o RS ERT AN TR A E
# > P e E P B4R b SRR
B WA BRIE B B A A o B
Bb > %SGR LR Al T U R R
HAHHEBRMIES] > W5 AR A T
EAR R > DA Fo o $R AL 3 WAl B
WS — BB B B R A —
TESEH o ACHR I Ol % A8 AT BEOY HE
CERCRENUH - HRZBBAERNR S
SR o %SG AT S A 4 L 1 B
RDU 2 2 B AT o 558

AW I B o R AR O5R - W uh A
SIS 3O 8 I 7o s A 5 i o R JUI S 7 9% (18
RTAC) & A i Ve AR AR o ) 5 (e
JE B % 1) IR A R B e 2 i A
T Ay 0 205 o D R P S 2 o R T R
PEATAE 5] A\ A L B A 2 iy 2 A e S
YT B P A 08 AT S e i B T
HRHHE o BLAb > B RT BLE A R A
e B PR A B L S B S A
P R B Z B BAR Z BN ERE o B
75 ] SIS ) 3 e B AR > PRI
BB AT S R S A 4 T 1 S 5 MR 0 B e B
T RAT AT S o
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31 March 2021 ZFZ—#=H=4+—H
2.2 B Rk BOR B e 5% 9 0 4 ) ()

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the Coronavirus Disease
(?COVID-19”). The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

(e) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

(d) 7 i B it B 2 16 5% (BT A) 2 7k

(e)

RN BBk — {8 B 5% T A7 A By 32 DA IR
BT R K% 3 ([COVID-19 ) B E
P 1% B A WAL 4 0 0 AN E AL IR 1B K
G FT I EL o % BB AT AT RE R v
ARENS BB R E AN % > B8
B (i) R B a3k 0 4 I 1 A S AREDA BT A
TR > T A8 A R R A L X 5 ) i AL
PR KRB > 5 A i B2 5 B) i AL
ARART 5 (i) L 5 A5F s %) A G 128 5 228 I
FIWIH B —F_—F A= HeiZ i
BTk 5 B (i) R A 3 Al ok I e 1
WARER W) o IR R RN
H—HRKZ BB MNEEMMAER - A
PR ELRE R > WO B IRE R o AEET IR
P 35§ A A7 [ Yy B 5 MR 00 B 3 B A AR AT

B

AW E RS 19E R a E AE
8% (ERTAS) $ 4t T K BT a2 & - Wi
SEFET W o M RDE IR - R SR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y0 5 3 3 B
31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
231ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 Ui 18 % A& 4 %0 75 W B 3% 3 4

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING el

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRS:s, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

A5 [ SN 7 5 B R E D DA T LB
AL AR A 2B T e A T A 9 T B o

these financial statements. A o
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’ TR BT R 358 BEPLERER
(717)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2' T B A 01 TR~ A
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, B0
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 B BRI
TR Bl R A )
o e A HEN]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and TR U5 1085 RE T BAG SR G B E
HKAS 28 (2011) its Associate or Joint Venture’ Bk R0yt G E S B
(ZB——1) (1T K)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond FSH B EARI0R (BT K)  ZF=—EAH=FHE
30 June 20217 ZCovid ORBIRIE AR
HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* TR B sk e H 51 7 ity
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*’ BB BRI (TR Rsdy 7
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BRI 155 (BT ) Vs 0t 1
Non-current*®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies* B AR SR (5T AR) Al BRZ P
Amendments to HKAS 8 Defimition of Accounting Estimates* FrisatElAsH (&) il e
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising B REA SR (BT A) BB B
from a Single Transaction* RAGHRIECHIT
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before B EHERI 655 (5T &) VIERY Yy 13, )
Intended Use’ HIFraE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’ Bl BRI TS (AT A) V7l e ey S
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9 Illustrative ZENEEZECFE TR H 55 158
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and FEHBRA BN ERLE  FEMER R0
HKAS 41° VB eI 1 65%
BERB Rl R T
A4 (BTAR)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

R AR H B AR B A AR
fil A 2%

MR A — H B2 R B IR A
S

AR IAR o H B AR B A AR
fil A2 2%

PRI A H B2 R B IR A
S

AR R AL 1 R A S ] 28

HR A GRS 18 (BRI A) > Bk
REESES IR B AR A B0 — (AN B S IRE
R B I o 28 16 3 1 7 B 5 1 40 0 — R
FAE A I AERT DATE A NS T R A E 1 5

An

FH B 7 98 B 5 o o A 5 1 708 (BT AR ) it —
TR T GAT o ERT AU I R
SEATEDUE R R R - SRR AR R
e i L T e
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23ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

2.3 O 1H NG R 2 S8 7 o S i

e (%)

A7 I TR 3 P 7 A 8 T o 2 56 7 o B
3 S A 2 — 2 ERL R T

AU Ak A 1% (BT A 8 i A L6 4
BhmBRIE R B Z BE - ZEBTHY
i T e S 9 A TR £ 2 W A 2 RO BB £
R e - R R TERERAT AR B 2 e > B
AR P S 9 R S AR 1 o R M
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

23ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall
be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of joint ventures
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in joint

ventures.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of the joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
joint venture upon loss of joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint

operation:

e itsassets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

e its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation; and

e its expenses, including its share of any expenses

incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group’s interest in a joint operation are accounted
for in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the

particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are

expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly

contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

period.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level ] - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 -~ based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, contract assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with

the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it

arises.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

e e
3.

FR A BORBEE (4)

Bl ek 75 (4)
(b) #Ji AAEE T IMETHRAE R TR © (A7)

(vi) %L HE 3 (a) B ol A 928 il s 36
HECS I

(vii) () (i) BT wd Bl A\ L 3 % B R TR
2 VIRE T YN T3 AC
TR EEAT) M EEEEAR
K

(vii) 2% T 5 I P g 4 T P A R 2
R A A A 0 R R 0 R PR R AT
BB R -

Yok ~ R Bt il BT #

Yok - BEER A (e TREBRAL) T3 4% A
TR T BAT AT A R MR - A3k -
0 B AR TEL R A A 5 W A B A
B BEAE FH 28 T A 5K 58 % b 36 P o L B
AR o

Y3k - BEAR Ko IE B 48 A E AR AR A Y A
16 B DR S B S 8 W A A 01 ] B R AR 4
B o AT A R B B DL T KB AR B B
SRt A AR E A > AR R EERAK - i1
3~ WS SR R B Y B > H
A [ 5 % S 4 e R A L > M B
i A A T A 40 e A M AR AT



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Owned assets
Building

Leasehold improvements

Over the remaining term of land lease

Over the shorter of the lease term and 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 24% to 30%

Computer equipment 20% to 24%

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold land
Office properties

Over the remaining terms of the leases
2 years to 3 years

Machinery 1 years to 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
any leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as detailed in the policy under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”

above.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is

calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition

that triggers the payment occurs.
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31 March 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in other

payables and accruals.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of certain office
properties and machinery (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income and gains in profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over

the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business

model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends

on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes a life insurance policy and
a derivative instrument which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required

to repay.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of

the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset is in default when
its contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for accounts receivable and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that contain
a significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as

described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net

of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and

other payables and interest-bearing bank loans.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the

cumulative amount of income recognised.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Group recognises provision for onerous contracts
when the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance
obligations under the construction contracts exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under them.
The amount of provision for onerous contracts is estimated
based on contract costs to completion and contract claims.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and

revised where appropriate.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZHE_Z—4#=H=4+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods

or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty

with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects

of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an output method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls overtime as the asset
is created or enhanced. The output method recognises
revenue in accordance with the direct measurements of
the value of the services transferred by the Group to the
customer with reference to the certified value of work

performed to date.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets
are subject to impairment assessment, details of which
are included in the accounting policies for impairment of

financial assets.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods and services to the

customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised

as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to

satisfy) performance obligations in the future.
(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed

as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group may receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which

they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning

and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there

are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends can be simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of

monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in

other comprehensive income.

$Uh 5 A e ik
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31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit

or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas joint
ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and

translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

DT A== —H
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31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. FE&3 R &S (8)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not

qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. FE&3 R &S (8)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Accounting for contract works

The Group’s revenue from contract works is recognised
over time using the output method and is measured in
accordance with the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligations. Budgeted contract costs
are prepared by management on the basis of contract
concluded with and/or quotations provided by major sub-
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved from time to
time, the experience of management and current market
condition. The estimation of profitability of each project
is dependent on the estimation of the total outcome of
the contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract as the contract progresses. Significant
judgement is required in estimating contract costs to
completion, variation works and contract claims which
may have an impact to the total outcome of the contract
and recognition of profit. Actual outcomes of total
contract costs and total revenue may be higher or lower
than that estimated at the end of the reporting period,
which would affect the profit recognised in future years as

an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Recoverability of accounts receivable and contract assets

The policy for impairment of accounts receivable and
contract assets of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of trade receivables
and contract assets as well as other quantitative and
qualitative information and on management’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information.
Significant judgement and estimates are required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these assets, based on
the current creditworthiness, the past collection history
and subsequent settlements of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional provisions may be required.
Further details are disclosed in notes 18, 19 and 36 to the
financial statements.
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31 March 2021
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is the contract works
segment. The contract works segment engages in contract
works, acting as a main contractor or sub-contractor,
primarily in respect of building construction and RMAA
works. Accordingly, no segment information is presented.
Further details of the Group’s revenue from building
construction and RMAA works are set out in note 6 to the

financial statements.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived
solely from its operations in Hong Kong and the non-
current assets of the Group are all located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers which accounted for 10% or more

of the Group’s revenue for the year, is set out below:

Customer A %
Customer B %F
Customer C 5FW
Customer D BT

e e
5.

AR TS EOR

R BT > A4 5 — ) A 4
HE B A A TR o A TR MRS
KRR - DABREE R HI T I S > 8
Y B RRMAA T2 o It - #E 9%
S A3 LERE o A7 A P A 1 A 5
RMA A TR A 0 — 25 ZORHRUR B 5 3t
H W EG ©

ACER B AE SR % 5 IO B A IR 1 LR A

HSEE o T A SR B Y R ) A AR
% o
EEE PR

Al A 55 1 4 BE WA 10% 5% DA L 19 %% )5 AR
I

2021 2020
SRS | SRR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
996,264 591,506
1,200,121 414,551

719,426 340,045
636,765 N/A”

A

Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue in the respective year.

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from other single
external customers accounted for 10% or more of the

Group’s revenue.
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ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

All of the Group’s revenue from construction services

DT A== —H

W~ oAt A K W s
ACER T A oA 1 S IR 2 WO T B I ] e

is recognised over time and an analysis of the Group’s AR AEBEBAZ ST -
revenue is as follows:
2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Revenue from contracts with customers KEHEFGHZPA
Contract works for building construction MEEEAEA TS 3,698,889 1,478,874
Contract works for RMAA works RMAA TR EX TR 6,352 68,967
3,705,241 1,547,841
Revenue from contracts with customers RAZPEHZEBA
Performance obligation JB A BT

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
construction services are rendered and payment is
generally due within 60 days from the date of issuance
of payment certificate. A certain percentage of payment
is retained by customers until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts.

Unsatisfied performance obligation related to construction
contracts as at 31 March:

B #6 B AT B R A s S R T K >
WM AT R E H B H WEH -
FhT P A 4% 0 e A6 5k A RE R BRI 2 5
AE B 20 i 43 S IR TR P 36 1 285 BT 2 v i 258 B T
E o WUR PR B B B A R R

REA =+ H B A AR B R AT
JRAFAT: -

2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# TFi#x

Amounts expected to be recognised TR DLT R e A

as revenue: WA &5

Within one year RN 4,715,984 2,108,248
After one year W—4ER 13,395,904 3,888,410
18,111,888 5,996,658
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31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA ~ HAW ARz (8)

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Performance obligation (continued)

The amount of contract sum allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relates to contract
works, of which the performance obligations are to be
satisfied within two to four years. All the other amounts
of contract sum allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not

include variable consideration which is constrained.

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as

KA%FFHZBOA ()

JE A EAE (B])

L O — AP AR R 2 WO 4 ) i
H BT B £ A0 SERTBRL IR T 2 DU 4 1 52 R 7
FAEM G R TRA R o A Ay B 2R 6k
VB A0 B AT B £ A BB Y — 4R P e R 2 W
A\ o bRl 4 5 W HUAS B4 2 B R 1 T A
(M

AR g At e\ R e B o AT A T

follows:
2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Interest income B WA 4,064 10,658
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE - WS R HIEE
plant and equipment Z Wz 20 70
Gross rental income with fixed lease A M E A a4
payments W A 4 %5 - 2,314
Government subsidies B i Bl 20,711 753
Sundry income e TE W A 7 145
24,802 13,940




31 March 2021

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DT A== —H

7. BRBLE A
AR Z BB R TR (GEA) F A%

(crediting): T :
2021 2020
TR AR ZRIRA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ik T#x F#T
Contract costs B RVRA 3,558,208 1,391,313
Provision for contract works, net”: AR TR A A
Additional provision A B 363,126 10,577
Utilisation/reversal 5 /1] 4% (177,899) (185,119)
185,227 (174,542)
Depreciation of owned assets HEEREmIreE 14 585 1,823
Depreciation of right-of-use assets” 1 FHRE i T R 14, 15(a) 51,431 29,202
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B85 il Y 4 2,600 2,532
Employee benefit expense (excluding & B AR b X (R BG4
Directors’ remuneration (note 9))": W4 (K aE9) )
Wages and salaries TE R4 215,278 186,730
Pension scheme contributions FEY N 5
(defined contribution schemes) (A ekt ) 5,951 5,400
221,229 192,130
Loss on derecognition of a building HORMER R (TR
held for redevelopment™ P — B P R 14 - 40,588
Fair value loss on financial assets at AR AR AR R
fair value through profit or loss SrRlE EZ A EEBR 1,159 -
Fair value loss on a derivative financial ik 4/ T
instrument NFAER R - 21
Lease payments not included in the AR FLE A fEE
measurement of lease liabilities” FAAH & £k 15(c) 22,779 11,868
Government subsidies™ R A Bl (20,711) (753)
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7.

31 March 2021

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (continued)

*

ok

sk sk

For the year ended 31 March 2021, depreciation of right-of-
use assets, employee benefit expense, provision for contract
works, net and lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities of HK$21,568,000 (2020: HK$4,338,000),
HK$213,597,000 (2020: HK$185,288,000), HK$185,227,000
(2020: utilisation/reversal of HK$174,542,000) and HK$22,779,000
(2020: HK$11,428,000), respectively, are included in contract costs

disclosed above.

This item is included in the “Other expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Subsidies have been received from (i) the “Employment
Support Scheme” under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” set up by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR Government”); and (ii) the Hong Kong
Vocational Training Council and the Construction Industry
Council, institutions established by the HKSAR Government, for
providing time-limited financial support to employers to retain
their employees and for providing on-the-job training for graduate
engineers and trainees, respectively. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

e e
7.

B A5 iy v A ()
AKE I 2 B BT R A CRIBR (B T A%
W (%)

*

ok

BREZBR - EZA=Z1THILEE - #H
MEEMNE - BEEAMMAL  AHTH
BEFELAAFRAHEAGETRNEE
£ 3K 4% 3 421,568,000 % 76 ( 8 R4 -
4,338,000457C) ~ 213,597,000 76 ( ~ R %
4F. ¢ 185,288,000 1) ~ 185,227,000 76 (=
TR B # 174,542,000 00 ) &
22,779,000% 7€ ( =& ZF 4 : 11,428,000%
J6) BEF A L SCH B A KA -

UIE B A AR £ 18 A R Al 2 T A R
Ty AR S 1A

T i e IR [ (i) R A 9 R 1) 4 1B [ BB RF
(17 U W BT ) R SL 19 [ B BE P e 4 10
T TR L5t 3 5 B (i) B W MRS Ak ) e
O SR (7 V4 A BOR lor  R ->
) oy 2 SRS R R B 25 S R DA B O E R A
O 9% 3 1) TR D % 258 B I AR T3 ) 0
By o 5% 55 il Bl S S0 AT AT AR T IR AR A s kAR o
T o

Y85 2
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2021 2020

TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x Fi#

Interest on bank loans SRATE K AR B 7,554 904
Interest on lease liabilities HE AR B 796 416
8,350 1,320




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),

9. HHFME

R4 1 22 Pl 2 i LR (T i R ) ~ &
WA RG] 55383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (H)FE
VA B v i) (4 3 3 o P 2 S0RE) 10091 56 2 98 4%

(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BAE EEEFWN T ¢
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Fees 14 504 432
Other emoluments: oAl
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4~ B REYH S 11,502 12,238
Discretionary performance-related bonuses 1175 L BAC AL 15,600 21,100
Pension scheme contributions JEY e L
(defined contribution schemes) (o ekt &) 90 106
27,192 33,444
27,696 33,876
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=+1+—H

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

9. A4 (%H)

(a) MNIEATHE LS
TR BE Y S AT T S R BT o
mr

2021 2020

= TR R

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x TF#oc

Prof. Ko Jan Ming” BT 24 _
Dr. Lee Man Piu, Albert* AR B - 24 _
Dr. Li Yok Sheung AL 144 144
Ms. Leung Yuen Shan, Maisy oLy B 144 144
Ms. Mak Suk Hing M4+ 144 144
Mr. Mong Chan® SR 24 _
504 432

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2020: nil).

TAAAEFEA > W S8 HE A 08 S JRE AT
ZIABT G (R TR ) o

# Appointed as an independent non-executive director of the # H_oZ -~ _H—HBERTEAK
Company with effect from 1 February 2021. ATIBISLIEHATEDS -
Executive directors (b) HfFES
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances performance- Pension
REZZ A and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2021 ZH=1—HIHEE Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e B Liel kg
Wwa  REWAE RS fhkeks it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung Bl e A - 3,951 4,000 18 7,969
Mr. Cheung Ho Yuen TR IR - 1,962 3,600 18 5,580
Mr. Ip Yik Nam ST e - 2,256 1,000 18 3,274
M. Lau Chi Fai, Daniel B R s A - 2,148 4,000 18 6,166
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai it 1 5 - 1,185 3,000 18 4,203
- 11,502 15,600 90 27,192
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

9. M (4D
(b) AT ()

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

Salaries, Discretionary

allowances performance- Pension

BRE-FZH and benefits related scheme
Year ended 31 March 2020 ZAZ+—H IR Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

Wd - Lih i Bk
e REWHE FEEL fkGhN it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#rx T#r T#7x T#x T#rx
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung e h: - 3,772 12,500 18 16,290
Mr. Cheung Ho Yuen R R - 1,681 2,000 18 3,699
M. Ip Yik Nam E )Y - 2,256 2,000 18 4,274
Mr. Lau Chi Fai, Daniel Bl A - 2,050 2,000 18 4,068
Mr. Yam Kui Hung™ RS et~ - 1,347 200 16 1,563
Mt. Yau Kwok Fai i I A - 1,132 2,400 18 3,550
- 12,238 21,100 106 33,444
##  Retired as an executive director of the Company with effect #=# HIZZREZHZTHHEBREARL

from 20 February 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year

(2020: nil).

APATHES -

A7 DAY T 0 < i 9 ) R A T < 4 ¢
P(EFTH ) o
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31 March 2021

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2020: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2020: one) non-director, highest paid AR

employees during the year are as follows:

DT AAE= = —H

10. 144 3 v 0 0 B

T AR JBE A T 44 S e T T O B LR =4 (2
FORE Y HEF - WEIMEFHC
I ESCRRES - FRHLERW S (ZFF
— ) FEE BN R B R
mE

2021 2020

e St ZERIFEH

HKS$’000 HK$’000

F# F#

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Ba - ELE YA 3,623 1,750
Discretionary performance-related bonuses I R BRAL AL 13,551 2,379
Pension scheme contributions IBRS 58 Bk 36 18
17,210 4,147

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000

4,000,001 ¥t %4,500,000% 70
7,000,001 # 7T %27,500,0009 78
9,500,001 #75%10,000,000 5

T <2 Ji T A S AR JE R e R B A
Wr

Number of employees

P B8

2021
SRR

2020
CHRRY
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11. INCOME TAX 11. Pifest

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
[slands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

L% B 8 I T R 4 T A I AL ) R
Bl > A A I 1 B B T I Sk R R A T R N A
IR BN AT R AR B o B RIS BE T AR R AR 4R
BE N TE 7 W B A 2 A R RE R B i R B R
16.5% (= F ZF4E 2 16.5% ) ME i -

2021 2020

R4 RO

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x F#

Current — Hong Kong: W — U

Charge for the year ANAE BE#E 18,090 16,254
Overprovision in prior years 2 A R A - (634)
Deferred (note 26) B (Mfat26) - 1
Total tax charge for the year 4F B B IE BH S 4440 18,090 15,621
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=+1+—H

11. INCOME TAX (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

11. Prfedi (4)
30 FE T A AR 2 ) B FE K 4 B D 2 W i £
] I 5 A B AR BB ¥ R < AU
B S BRI B B A % R R L B S vy SR

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as T

follows:

2021 2020
TR AR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#r
Profit before tax % A58 Al 5 A 112,790 39,596
Tax at the Hong Kong tax rate of 16.5% HEWRER16.5%FH B 2 Bl 18,610 6,533
Temporary difference not recognised ARMETRZ W W 3 (4,089)
Profits and losses attributable to HERAEAEN
a joint venture it Fll e s 8 (2,391) (219)
Income not subject to tax SEZEARBLIA (3,802) (1,371)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z B 52 4,495 10,415
Tax losses not recognised KRR Z BB IEE 1,175 5,037
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ) F 2 13 200 R A B I s 4R - (2)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of T 20 1 34 P B B A
previous period Ty R 2 - (634)
Others oAl - (49)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective AR B IR EBRBLR G
tax rate Tt T B 32 18,090 15,621

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures amounting
to HK$2,864,000 (2020: tax credit of HK$165,000) is

included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures”

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FEAL & 3 A 2 Z BLIH 752,864,000 70 (=&
TURAE - BRGS0 165,000%E 00 ) M AR
& (A A8 2l P Ak o
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DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Proposed final — HK2.5 cents (2020: nil) BB IR S BB AR T —
per ordinary share 25WAN (R - ) 50,000 -

The final dividend proposed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

13.

TR 5 0 A A% S e R < A e R A A
] B SR AT 0 M ROE AR K S BOR
e > TR o

BE2Y W) 9 R0 R A AT A A B
A

T JBE 5 A 7R 75 AR 9RO 4F BE B 4 W Ol
MR E BN RN LEEAT RS
2,000,000,000/8 ( =2 — 4= : 2,000,000,000
B ) 5 388 M 2 Il - 3 Wit 4 o

REREZR D ERCFDREZA S
HARAFEBE > AR [ 3 J8E O 8847 FL V8 A 8
BB o
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oA 5 e i ik

-

FE=ZH=1—H

14. P& ~ BEAS BB i

Right-of-use assets Owned assets Total
BN AR it
Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Leasehold Office Leasehold ~ and office Motor ~ Computer in
land  properties  Machinery Total improvements ~ equipment vehicles  equipment  progress Total
fff
WA% HitHE HeRER
LLiER ] ik B it LI T W TN IR it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
Ti#gx  TE#L  T#L  TEc  TEC  TEL Téd T#L  TEC  TEL Ti#X
31 March 2021 SRRENEH
At 1 April 2000: RERZZENA-H :
Cost Bk 619,633 4984 18809 643,426 4,385 11,923 13,202 4,131 3,06 36867 680,293
Accumulated depreciation Lt (22,599)  (2,265)  (4,338)  (29,202)  (4173)  (11,589)  (12,813) (4,004 - (32,579 (61,781)
Net carrying amount i S04 719 14471 614204 20 334 389 W 36 4288 61851
At 1 April 2020, net of REFZRENA-A
accumulated depreciation MR 5970 2719 14471 614,224 212 334 389 17 326 4288 618512
Additions E 554,840 4,504 31,058 590,402 - 34 - 28 218044 28106 618,508
Disposal e - - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation provided during the year A RATEE (HfE7)
(note 7) (27,144 (4,59) (19,691  (51431) (122) (210) (180) (13) - (585)  (52,016)
At 31 March 2021, net of WoBZ-HZA=Z1—0
accumulated depreciation il E R LI24730 2,627 2588 1,153,195 90 158 209 8 31,00 31,809 1,185,004
At 31 March 2021: REBZ-EZH=4—H:
Cost Bk L174,473 9488 49,807 1,233,828 4,385 11,957 12,633 4159 31270 64,404 1,298,232
Accumulated depreciation 2tk (49,743) (6,861)  (24,029)  (80,633) (4,295)  (11,799)  (12,424) (4,077) - (32,595 (113,228)
Net carrying amount IR 1,124,730 2,607 15838 1,153,195 90 158 209 82 31,270 31,809 1,185,004
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14. Po3E ~ BEAN Best i (41)

(continued)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets Total
MR R wit
Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Leasehold Office Leasehold ~ and office Motor ~ Computer in
land  properties  Machinery Total ~ Buildings improvements equipment  vehicles equipment  progress Total
fefi»
Whg HEHE Hekny
LliER ) 03 B wit 53 Bl RAERE iH TR ARTR it
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
fibr  FEL TEC T FEE TEC T TEC T TP 0 FEX
31 March 2020 i SV e o |
At April 2019: REB-WERA—
Cost ts 644909 - SGM9 M1 43 19 B 4Bl - BB M
Accumulated depreciation 2tk - - - - (1508)  (4051)  (11300)  (12634)  (394) - (B4 (340D
Net carrying amount Wt 044,909 - - 644909 H44 334 (95} 568 07 - $176 690,085
At1 April 2019, net of REF-NENA -«
accunulated depreciation B EaHE 044909 - - 644909 444 334 623 568 0 - $176 690,085
Additions e - 4984 18,809 13193 - - - 3,116 3,006 17,019
Disposal ik - - - - - - - -
Depreciation provided during the year  SEFy4fE (Hfit7)
(note7) (12,599) (2,263) (4338 (29.00) (1,193) (1) (189) (179) (80) - (183)  (31,025)
Stamp duty refund recoverable TRmATERER
(note 30(a) (Wit0() (25,276) - (15,276) (1,703) - - - (1,703)  (26979)
Loss on derecognition of a building ALRARHEEERRRN
held for edevelopment (note ) ~REFHRE ML) - - (40,388) - - - (403%8)  (40,388)
At 31 March 2020, net of RoZZREZR=4-1
accumulated depreciation bl i 597,034 1719 14471 61424 - m 334 389 17 3,006 4288 618512
At31 March 2020: REBZBEZN=1-H
Cost ik 019,633 4984 18809 643426 - 4385 11,923 13,201 431 3,006 36867 680,293
Accumulated depreciation Hihik (5% (3) (4338 (29200) - (@IB) (1589 (12813) (4004 - (32519 (6781
Net carrying amount W 597,034 119 14471 014,024 - 1 334 389 17 3,006 4288 018,512

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate net carrying amount of
HK$1,156,000,000 (2020: nil) were pledged to secure a
bank loan granted to the Group (note 25).

MR FEZA=E1—H o A 8 48R T A
%41,156,000,000¥ 70 (B R4 « &) Mk -
B A8 B KA DA DR 432 T AR 4R T 1y BRAT B
(FR5E25) ©
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15. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold land, office properties and machinery used in
its operations. Lump sum payment was made upfront for
the acquisition and lease modification of the leasehold
land with a lease period of about 27 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of this land lease.
Leases of office properties and machinery generally have
lease terms between 2 and 3 years. There are several lease
contracts that include termination options which are
further disclosed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets (included under property, plant and equipment)
and the movements during the year are disclosed in

note 14 to the financial statements.

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included
under other payables and accruals) and the

movements during the year are as follows:

15. Al

A G Ry R ALA

ACKE T A AL P T R - AR
oo B S5 2 I H AL B 40 o RO
LRI 2 0 = LA WAL o B A8 5T A g
CLHE At HLUCRE R > T AR % 5 - 3 A B
AR > A AN B A SR TR - WA=
Pk B AR RO RLUE B A P A o G
AR RN 2 HALE A - PR
Fo

(a) /R
AR P AR (LG ROE - BE R
B M TET ) 1 M v A B LA AR JE 2
538 ) 4 A B R B 14

(b) HEALH
REL £ O 355 7 Al B ARk sk B Mt 22
FABETE ) M v S I 4R BN F

2021 2020
TR TRTRAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x Fi#x

Carrying amount at 1 April FH A — H R A 16,614 -

New leases BiMHE 35,562 23,793

Accretion of interest recognised AN TR B R

during the year 796 416

Payments IO (22,548) (7,595)
Carrying amount at 31 March H=H=+—H iR E 30,424 16,614




31 March 2021

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

(c)

(d)

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 A e ik

DT A== —H

B
FE By HE 4>

15. fLEE (%)
RS A AR ALA (1)
(b) A

2021 2020
e SRR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#7T
26,353 9,898
4,071 6,716

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 36 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

A B R P B B 2 BT 7 B R b
36 ER -

() TR e % AL B AH B N F

2021 2020

R4 R

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x F#

Interest on lease liabilities HE AR E 796 416
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets i I REE T EE B % 51,431 29,202
Expenses relating to short-term leases TR E R S 22,779 11,868
Total amount recognised in profit or loss TP 18 25 P T R ) 4 4 75,006 41,486

The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note

30(c) to the financial statements.

(d) R B4 30 HH AR S 5 e MY 30
(c) i -
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e) Termination options
The Group has several lease contracts that include
termination options. These options are negotiated
by management to provide flexibility in managing
the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned with

the Group’s business needs. Set out below are the

e

15. HLEE (%)

ACSE I A By AR AL (A7)
(e) AILZEHERE
AR I ORI 4 B 4 AR R R R A
B PG T % SRR AT R - DA
W EEEAS » WAL AL
RSB 5 R — 2 o AW IHTA AL A B
Ak 338 SRR AT B 9145 4 S0 T R B ) AR

undiscounted potential future rental payments BB AR R ERIIN T -
relating to periods following the exercise date of
termination options that are not included in the lease
terms:
2021 2020
TR AR R
Payable within | Payable within
five years five years
TFiAE N REAT 3RO | 48 PO R A k0
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C Fi
Termination options expected FHFTIEAT O B 2% 1k 388 S A
to be exercised 192 126
The Group as a lessor ASEBAE S BALA

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group leased
certain of its property, plant and equipment (note 14)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases initially
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.
The terms of these leases required the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2020 was HK$2,314,000, details of which are
included in note 6 to financial statements.

BRECRRE=A=T—HIREE » A4
P AR 4 A L 2 B AL T3 RS %
Bt (M ek 14) o Kb & - MR8 4 P
—EEA o M HGRKERA P AR A
ST T AR A8 T B i 455 0K 004 S 200 A 4

B o REEPRE

— g — 2B

“FF

FE=ZA=+—H

b4 I 4F P9 HE 52 0 R 4 W N %5 2,314,000
TG > RETE R B R b G o
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 16. R BAEENEE
2021 2020
TR e 02
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl THT
Share of net assets HEA B 2 A 43,591 44,106
Goodwill on acquisition W Jifs v 45,015 45,015
88,606 89,121

The amount due to a joint venture included in the

Group’s current liabilities is unsecured, interest-free and is

repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture is as

w5 I 37 58 £ P MR — [ A S

T AT ~ o AR EOR AR -

AR EEAE RN

follows:
Percentage of
Particulars Place of AT
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
i Ay
4 CEAT e Wb kB SR b i 5 B BEEHE AN ERA R
Gold Victory Registered BVI/Hong Kong 50 50 50 Investment holding
Resources Inc. capital of
(“Gold Victory”) US$2
(note)
Gold Victory FEIM B AR B A WO B
Resources Inc. VE " ik
(“Gold Victory”)
(Ht)
Note:  Asat 31 March 2021, subsidiaries of Gold Victory (together with Mat: A £ =HH=+—H >

Gold Victory, collectively, the “GV Group”) are principally

engaged in the installation and trading of doors and furniture.

The above investment is held indirectly by a subsidiary of

the Company.

Gold Victory By Bf B 2 & (
Gold Victory » #iff [GVHEH 1) £
M RARM R R T L o

R
Bigiiea

VLB B8 i A 2 AR — [ e 2 ) T 4% 4

ﬁo
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DT AAE= = —H

16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the GV Group, adjusted for any

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying amount in the financial statements:

16. R H B AFEMBE (4)

TREBBECGVEMI B ERHE - e
wH BRI 25 By DGR B > DLRCEHIR =
B r R I

2021 2020
e St ZERIFEH
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Cash and cash equivalents B4e LB &% EY 9,021 12,706
Other current assets Al 37 T 84,354 74,981
Current assets mEE = 93,375 87,687
Non-current assets I B E 6,458 11,555
Current liabilities B A& (12,284) (10,028)
Non-current liabilities FEFE A & (367) (1,002)
Net assets R 87,182 88,212
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest BLASE G VAR F
in the GV Group: REZS W SBHHR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A4 [ A RE LL A 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets A B 1B A ¥ i 43,591 44,106
Goodwill on acquisition Wi Jf g 45,015 45,015
Carrying amount of the investment P& ) B THI A 88,606 89,121
Revenue WA 147,082 120,099
Depreciation and amortisation Prds K dik 8 (5,134) (10,591)
Tax credit/(expense) BB E, (BX) (5,727) 329
Other comprehensive loss H 4 hi 4 2k - (3,532)
Profit and total comprehensive AR 9 i A B 2
income/(loss) for the year WA (B SR) 485 28,970 (876)




ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

17. JOINT OPERATIONS

Particulars of the Group’s material joint operations are as

17. B3R
AGEEERGEEB RN T

follows:
Percentage of
attributable interest
Place of of the Group
Form of business registration and S 22 M A ¥ b
Name structure business 2021 2020 Principal activities
% EHEMEX ok 1 B 35 i TR | CRORE REEH
% %
Paul Y. - Body Hong Kong 30 30 Provision of
Able Joint Venture unincorporate construction
services
PR — 22 R 1 B YNE | B PR AL S IR s
BUILD KING - Body Hong Kong 49 N/A  Provision of
ABLE Joint Venture unincorporate construction
services
) e — 2 AR Wk EIR NG | itk AR RO SR
ABLE - Body Hong Kong 51 N/A  Provision of
PAUL Y. Joint Venture unincorporate construction
services
AR — PRIEI PR INE |- T AR fRAEE AR
Note: Mt -

Under the joint venture agreements, the joint operators have
contractually agreed the sharing of control over the relevant activities of
these body unincorporates, hence these body unincorporates are jointly
controlled by the Group and the other joint operators. Furthermore, the
relevant joint venture agreements specify that the Group and the other
party to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangement, therefore these body
unincorporates are classified as joint operations.

HEBR 48 ke > A 7 CRL & #0074 %
RECYNC LV PR T R SR 2PN
TR iy A 4 T Al £ Ty G I A o B > A
L 2 Ol T ) A 4 B o ) A A U
AELETYPREERAMEAERNRAA &
B o WO I N\ B 2 S R o
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable represented receivables for contract
works. The payment terms of contract works receivables
are stipulated in the relevant contracts and payments are
normally due within 60 days from the date of issuance of

the payment certificate.

The Group assigned its financial benefits under certain
contract works to secure certain general banking facilities
granted to members of the Group, and as at 31 March
2021, the aggregate amount of accounts receivable
related to such contract works pledged to secure the
relevant banking facilities was HK$87,632,000 (2020:
HK$130,653,000).

An ageing analysis of accounts receivable as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment certificate

date, is as follows:

18. HEWUIR X

FEWCHR 3K 48 A 40 TR EWGRIE - A 40 TREHE
WO IE Y S A KR A B A A ET > Ak
AN TP A i I AR GO H BB -

ARG IR T A TR M ER 2
DL DR 42 T A 1 i B 2 W) W T — B ERAT
g N _FHE=ZA=+—H > HHEH
A TR BT DUVRLHR AR 2 A R SRAT A&
5 R 1) JRE WSR3k 488 7,632,000 G (=&
FAE 1 130,653,0007C) o

AR IR - BRSOk % A skl W & H BT AY
HRER TN T

2021 2020

e St ZERIFEH

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#x F#

Current to six months B 58 A 203,472 192,395
Over six months N A 139 8,877
203,611 201,272

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

T3 BT 2R 2 R AN A B S i i 36 v ¢
% o



19. CONTRACT ASSETS

31 March 2021
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e

19. FRI¥E A

31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
S| CEORE SR
Z“H=+—+H | =ZH=+—H PAH—H
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x F#
Contract assets arising from R RIEER
construction contracts: BRI E
Unbilled revenue RBHEZE WA 245,966 50,538 57,742
Retention receivables W AR 5 4 275,061 168,307 162,418
521,027 218,845 220,160
The movements of contract assets are as follows: GREENEEWT :
2021 2020
TR TRIORA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
At beginning of the year REH] 218,845 220,160
Addition in contract assets BRIEEYE M 419,467 99,562
Transfers to accounts receivable R = IR 3k (117,285) (100,877)
At end of the year TAMER 521,027 218,845

Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents

the Group’s right to receive consideration for the work

performed and not yet certified by customers because the

rights are conditional upon the quality and quantity check

by the customers on the construction work performed

by the Group and the work is pending for the payment

certification by the customers. Contract assets regarding

unbilled revenue are transferred to accounts receivable

when the rights become unconditional, which is typically

at the time the Group obtains the payment certification of

the performed construction work from the customers.

FEA T # E R B B SO SR AR I
it AR AR R % 5 A AR WA A
A > A BIRER P % P RS ) U T
TR W R YR E - H TR
TERF %P YA W] o B A B R A 2 2 JHE A0
Pl (B A AR B A % P U D T 5 T
T ) RF 8 T A %) - BELR B ST WA
IR B £ 70 P T RS S M MUK -
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Retention receivables included in contract assets
represents the Group’s right to consideration for the work
performed but not yet collectible because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. Contract assets regarding retention receivables
are transferred to the accounts receivable when the rights
become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry
date of the period for the provision of assurance by the
Group on the service quality of the construction work

performed by the Group.

The increase in contract assets in the year ended 31
March 2021 was mainly due to the increase in the ongoing
provision of construction services during the year and the
decrease in contract assets in the year ended 31 March
2020 was mainly due to the transfer of contract assets to

accounts receivable during the prior year.

Among the above contract assets, HK$228,178,000 as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$87,688,000) are expected
to be recovered after twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 36 to the financial

statements.

The Group assigned its financial benefits under certain
contract works to secure certain general banking
facilities granted to members of the Group, and as at 31
March 2021, the aggregate amount of unbilled revenue
and retention receivables related to such contract
works pledged to secure the relevant banking facilities
were HK$100,411,000 (2020: HK$43,824,000) and
HK$61,034,000 (2020: HK$103,575,000), respectively.

9. & A (1)

EA T #0 E  JE WDR i AR 4R L C e
AR AR W AT R RE R - BRI AT R R P
%P ROET W R T 0 TR R R A R R
B o A B R B AR A (— 2 AC SR [
At L T A s 5 TR R R R B R
fo 4 i ) o L AR < R B Y A
RS 3 UK

AREEREKE_F_#=A=1t—HIk
AR PENE N > J2 R R AR N A PR A R
B RHEERKE-RRFE=A
=t HIRFE R - EE R R BESEEN
WS 8 A 2 R

Mo —HE=H=Z+—H  RLEAEH
% P A 228,178,000 U0 ( B ZF4E ¢
87,688,000 7t ) T B e i W AR+ ZMH A
B o

TR B TG A A A B B A MR 36 ¢
ﬁo

AR ] H R T A A TR R S A 25
DL AR 452 T AR £ B B B 8 /] 3 — MR AT
g o RFEEH=E1—H - EHR
A #) TR B 3 DURLHR A 2 A R SRAT Al
3 R 1 A [ 23 S5 A A M A s 4 4 ) A
100,411,000 # 7€ ( % T4 : 43,824,000
W ot) M 61,034,000 % T ( =& 4R -
103,575,000#78 ) °
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31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  20. FAFak o ~ i i B0k B oAb % A

OTHER ASSETS

2021 2020

R4 s

HK$’000 HK$’000

T-# 0 T

Prepayments TR 37,931 26,389
Deposits and other receivables ¥4 T HoAth FE Wk 6,904 31,999
44,835 58,388

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

Details of ECLs are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

bt 7 WO S ) A o A R A B
V1 4 il SR T U1 0 A A S Y B OEK A

Eﬁo

TR B TR G A ARG A B B AR MR 36 9

%o

21. AP A 2 S BT

2021
SR
HK$’000
T#x

Investment in a life insurance policy PN S NI a4 5,137

2020
“RIRY
HK$'000
T#7T
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21.

22.

31 March 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure a director
of the Company. Under the policy, the beneficiary and
the policy holder is the Group and the total insured
sum is US$2,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,435,000). The Group was required to pay a one-
off premium payment of US$809,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,296,000 at inception). The Group
can, at any time, withdraw cash based on the cash value
of the policy (“Cash Value”) at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the gross premium paid plus
accumulated interest earned (guaranteed interest of
3.9% for the first year and a variable return per annum
afterwards (with minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2%
per annum)) and minus any charges made in accordance

with the terms and conditions of the policy.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

22.

DT AAE= = —H
21.

5 PR RN 20 0 2 e s (49)

MRE-BZAEEH=E1—H o AREEER—H
PR 7] B N IRBE R DL By AR A R — &
HEROREE o MBI - 28 AR
R N R AL E > i AR R 48 A % 2,500,000
276 (KM R 119,435,000 5T ) o A< 45 8 8
X AF809,0003 78 (4 AR B BA i A= R REAH 5
#16,296,000% 70 ) 1 — K MR & o ASSE [ H]
W IR A 4% 1k H 3T AR B 1 B 4 1 1 (T B A
A1) W ImT B4 > FC TR O A PR B A8 A B
Wi Z REFFE G — R 33.9% 8 B - 3
A% A BBV ) Dl (PR I KA B 2% ) ) I
11 B3R R R R LA K AR 4Rty AR ik
HERE o

B4 B B4 A Y B 32 WL BL 4

2021 2020

e St ZERIFEH

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#x F#

Cash and bank balances B4 TRAT 4 R 904,933 276,645
Time deposits EWE 110,000 450,000
1,014,933 726,645
Less: Restricted cash (note) W2 SRR B4 (M) (110,000) (110,000)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 M4 EY 904,933 616,645

Note: As at 31 March 2021, bank deposits amounting to
HK$110,000,000 (2020: HK$110,000,000) were placed as
guaranteed deposit for the performance bond issued by the
relevant bank in relation to a construction project of the Group
and such deposits will be released upon the completion of the

relevant project.

P RTSERDE=ZH=+—H 110,000,000
W or (R R4 £ 110,000,000 70 ) H48
ATAF 3K AT TROR FH B SRAT 1 3 SR AT B AR 45
B — JE R SR TE H BH 0 R A DR 4 IR
AFaK > T A BRI A B T E 58 R e i
% °
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31 March 2021

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

23.

RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with banks with high credit ratings and no
recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date or the

payment certificate date, is as follows:

DT A== —H

22. Bl Be Bl A& AWy B 3% W BL &

23.

(%)

SRATBL A AR U 45 11 SRAT A7 AR OR M W i
T ) e TR L o 0 S S0 A K 0 200 PR
- W RETMEARE - FPALGEE W
I B A o 3 e % A1 A B A R
BRI o BRAT & 8 I 52 I 3K T 4 MO AE v A
FHI ST A0 L 08 0 78 440 3 Bk B AT

HEA) sk
TP A8 9 R4 8 O H Y S skl W o H BT AY
JEAT R AR B A AT I T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#x F#

Within three months =MMARN 227,507 131,069
Four to six months I EYAY (A DE] 32,434 34,940
Over six months FBm S AE A 170,611 148,927
430,552 314,936

At 31 March 2021, retention payables included in
accounts payable amounted to HK$181,359,000 (2020:
HK$144,927,000), which are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled within terms ranging from one to four

years.

Other than retention payables, accounts payable are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled within 60 days
from the date of invoice or payment certificate date.

MR EZH=Z1—H > BEAEROE
JEAH 4 78 42 181,359,000 76 ( & R 4E -
144,927,000¥ 70 ) » H 4 o 8 B — i 45
fP—FPULE o

ik A DRl B 80 > A MRk S B S — M
BEOT H I A kil W13 H AR 60 R s -
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31 March 2021 —FZ—4EZH=1—H
24. JLAb Ak B Mt ¢

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020
R4 RO
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt T#x F#
Provision for contract works HH TR 373,264 188,037
Other payables At A K (a) 33,731 22,830
Accruals HEEHE: 14,626 1,469
Lease liabilities HEAR 15(b) 30,424 16,614
452,045 228,950
Non-current portion FER B4 15(b) (4,071) (6,716)
Current portion WmEE 4 447,974 222,234
Note: Mt

(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are
expected to be settled within one year.

(a) FCAWREATERR 8 > WAL —F N

1% -
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31 March 2021 ZFZ—#=H=4+—H
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 25. b B 8HT £
2021 2020
TR e 02
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#or
Current AU
Bank loans repayable on demand: AR ELRAE IR RAT B -
Secured and at floating rates A B i B A 35T SR 277,276 121,517
Unsecured and at floating rates UEHERA B a0 B A 55 A B 62,974 -
340,250 121,517
Non-current FH B
Bank loans: secured and at floating rates SRATEERR AT R AR B A R
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ 482!000 -
822,250 121,517
Analysed into: ST
Bank loans repayable: R R BRAT K
Within one year or on demand AR B R B R 340,250 121,517
In the second to fifth years, inclusive T AR BB TAE
(BI5E R W4AE) 482,000 -
822,250 121,517
(i) As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank loan with an (1) RZBZ_H=ZH=1+—H » REHHA
aggregate carrying amount of HK$482,000,000 (2020: {H %4482,000,000% 70 ( T ZF4E : i)
nil) was secured by: MY ERAT 883K H AR & AR HRA -
(a) the Group’s property, plant and equipment (a) ZASHE [ MR T 48 4E %5 1,156,000,000 95

with an aggregate carrying amount of

HK$1,156,000,000 (2020: nil);

(b) the equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group (b)
(2020: nil); and

(c) the floating charge over all the assets and (c)
undertakings of a subsidiary of the Group.

To (R IRAE ) SE - AR
Lot :

7% 4 T — [0 O 2 ) Y e A 2
(ZFZFEHE) s R

HRAR SR [ — [] PO 2 ) P A
Rk BT AR R B A o

17
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31 March 2021 —FZ—4EZH=1—H
25. Wl B 8T Sk (41)

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
(continued)
(ii) As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank loans with an

aggregate carrying amount of HK$277,276,000 (2020:
HK$121,517,000) were secured by the assignment of
the Group’s financial benefits under certain contract
work, which include accounts receivable, unbilled
revenue and retention receivables of HK$87,632,000
(2020: HK$130,653,000), HK$100,411,000 (2020:
HK$43,824,000) and HK$61,034,000 (2020:
HK$103,575,000), respectively;

(iii) As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank loans with an

aggregate carrying amounts of HK$87,276,000 (2020:
HK$121,517,000) were secured by certain deposits
accounts maintained with the relevant banks as

continuing security for the obligations of the Group;

(iv) The Group’s bank loans are all denominated in Hong

Kong dollars; and

(v) The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are

primarily repriced every month based on HIBOR
changes.

(it)

(iii)

MoZTEZH=Z4—H o AER
HAME %5 277,276,000 00 ( ZF 4 ¢
121,517,000 % JG ) ) 81 47 8 5k DA AR 48
BMETHEATROMEMNR(FHa
5 E MR 3k~ A B S N % JRE i AR
W54 87,632,000 70 (& &
4 1 130,653,000 # 7€ ) ~ 100,411,000
Wt (R TR ¢ 43,824,000% 7T )
K 61,034,000 ¥ JC ( = F Z F 4 :
103,575,000 76 ) EHLAT

RoFAE=H=+—H » REEY
SRAT Bk R i 48 487,276,000 8 (=&
TURAE 1 121,517,000 76 ) DA AS 4
FHBRSRAT A W4 T 125K P AR 2 AR 4R
V3 5% % AT P R AR 5 5

ACER T R SRAT Bk AT R 5 K

ACER ] SRAT B B A R T AR A W R
A7 i SEHF 55 Bl 1 4 ) SRR A Y o
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. IEHEBLIH
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as ENRERIEEENEEBNT
follows:
Depreciation in
excess of related
depreciation
allowance
A0 A B T
e B
HK$’000
F#oc
At 1 April 2019 W _F—JEMNHA—H 218
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss AN B B2 R IR EBLIE (Mt L)
during the year (note 11) (1)
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 WA Z _ZE=ZH=+—H -
ZRIRENHA—H K
—E - —HF=ZH=1+—H 217
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AR A [ 7 A v A 0 B I s 4R % 43,523,000
HK$43,523,000 (2020: HK$36,403,000). Subject to WG (ZF R 1 36,403,000%70) © 7
the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue WRLE R I R REBLAR > AR e 4R T Bk A%
Department, these tax losses are available indefinitely for PR 3010 41K 839 2 2 s 18 A O ) A R 2 M SR B v
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in ) o ph I AN 52 2 AH B A RS 2 W) W] RE R R SR
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been JE 40 R e R I B R A A > O R A

recognised in respect of these losses, as it is not considered e L e 0 S A
probable that the relevant subsidiaries would have

sufficient future taxable profits to utilise such amount.
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would

27.

be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries or joint ventures as the Group has

no liability to additional tax should such amounts be

remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=+1+—H

26. JERE B (A1)
MEAE BLITE ¥ 7 (40)
. = = SVESER
A 25 A 4 s A 43 B
A 1 HE 5009 T 08 LR 54
A = I DR 2 E o A TP 0 0
o AN B -

A i i H B SR S A e A T A T 4 B

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. 2o
SHARE CAPITAL 27. AR
2021 2020
R4 RO
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#
Authorised: BE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 8¢ 45 1% 1 &
HK$0.01 each 0.01 ¥ 0 Z i K 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: CEIT R -
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 B #: Ji Thi {
HK$0.01 each 0.01¥ 70 2 % 4 Bt 20,000 20,000

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital

during the year.

AR A T A BEAE A2 ) o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZHE_Z—4#=H=4+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution of the Company passed on 31
August 2018, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and full-time
employees of any member of the Group and Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (“Vantage”), the then
intermediate holding company of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Vantage
Group”)(Pursuant to the Scheme, directors and full-time
employees of the Vantage Group are no longer eligible
participants of the Scheme from 19 November 2020 since
Vantage ceased to be the intermediate holding company of
the Company from the day). The Scheme became effective
on 31 August 2018 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
is such a number of shares representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the adoption date of the
Scheme or on the day when such limit is subsequently
refreshed with shareholders’ approval (excluding for this
purpose any share options which have been previously
granted pursuant to the Scheme and any other scheme
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised)).

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

28. Ji I A it =

WA A TR =T )FENHA =+ — HER
AP - AR Oy T CLPR AR i A ) (it
B 1) s DL B I B A T S AC AR T R 2
M ERA A ER 28 AL - it E
FEK2EANLAFEMESR(BHATH
P RBATES LI RATE ) AR
VA o R 2 ) B AR R IR TR 2 e
) B PR B A R A R (1384 ) B B Jag 24w
(BERE 2 [ A3 4R 0 ) iy 2 k0 5 (R 88 2t
B BERMNERLEBRERNAGA
FIFFET A HILH BT R AN A
T 42 BB 2 ) 10 A T R it B AR 2 BN
+) o EEHEOR ZF - NENA=1+—H
HERR - BRI A wE B BB TT H A - MR H Y
LR AR R AT AR AR o AR LT B > BUAR R
% wl B T REAZ Hh A Y Je A U b R £
AN TR % wt B PR A ) e A o AR
SR B BR AT F O © 847 BEA10% 1 % 4%
JBe A e F Ol ST 5 A B 556 AR B8 ot i R AR
Ay JEC Al 51 200 7% 516 W 5% Y R B (
AR - CREH - TR OATH N E
JBeHE)) o

ATAT L2 A I - R IR T et Bl G
A 2 BN A 5 JBORE VT B AT e B B L PR
T3 BRI A 2 R AT Aol 0 ] 2 3847 IR 9 1.9% o
A 3 — 25-45% H 8 A Db L 7 % M A 2 e
WO AR Bk o
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31 March 2021 = _Z—4#=H=4+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to directors, officers or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share

options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but should not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheets on the
date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No option was granted from the date of adoption of the
Scheme up to the date of approval of these consolidated

financial statements.

28. Ji I hE it = (%)

BPARAFESR - 7% B ok 3 BB (5
A o A 5 v T N ) Y D T 2 S S R R L
FEBATE A UE o BAD > PR 1248 7
W > AR 452 P A2 R A28 B R s o JE AT
g (AT T A8 55 0 T S N ) 10 ) J R
AR 2 R PT AR IE R OB AT e B90.1% M 48
B (RAAR 23 5] B4y 1A 452 H I 300 1 (A s 3 )
WS HEWIC » BB AR B KT I
e o

AN AT i 4 AR > Bl
Sl Je Bl 2 S A4 VT A H RS 14 % 9 4
AP o F5 HHY BB P A B0 VT ol R - W
NIRRT N PR M B A HDRE AR 2 HO A
3} o

S B W 1) 47 B £ T pR R RO > AR AR
DU S5 e 3 (i) AR 2 ) Je Ay 77 D J M 452 1 I 340
TR AZ BT H e B el A6 5 (i) AR W) BB
T BB A 9 A A2 B F B 22 B BT
PR WAL 5 K (i) AR A v B T A ©

S Je A S 28 R A A CIRUBE B B B SRR
LB A -

H %A W R A F TR A AR B M i
FZ HIH > BEHESZ AT il IR -



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H

29. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

Capital reserve

The Group’s capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares and the consideration in exchange
therefor.

Other reserve
Other reserve represents the Group’s share of

exchange fluctuation reserve of its joint ventures.

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-
cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$35,562,000 (2020:
HK$23,793,000) and HK$35,562,000 (2020:
HK$23,793,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office properties and machinery
included in property, plant and equipment.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
was entitled to a stamp duty refund with an
aggregate amount of HK$26,979,000 which was
recoverable from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department upon the approval for the demolition
of the relevant building and such amount was
reclassified from property, plant and equipment

to other receivables.

29. fili i
(a) ZAHEM
A S A AS AT B A0 A B I ot T 3L
BTN GARREHRFES -

(b) BEAGH
AR ] % A 4 i A 55 P D 2 ) 7
A T e A b v AR 2 A A A iy
5 1 B A7 Th L B P i 1 e BELAC 452 [
A A 2

(c) Fefin i it
Al 485 1 A 2 0 R A 5 3 S BRE S
BBk o

30. A B AW KW

(a) FEMIEBERS

(i) W4ER - REBEBRET AWE -
RN B RIS
MEZRHS NGB SREMEN
BE & 73 35,562,000 0 ( ~ R &%
4E 123,793,000 00 ) KB A
%35,562,000% 78 ( ZF R4 :
23,793,000%7C) °

(i) MEZR_RE=A=1—HIL4F
JE o A [ A RE AR R A i A 48
TREAEA AL ETR B A5 W B R Wl
ENAERL IR 3K - #14:%17%526,979,000
Wt o HHSHE AW - B R
8 T4 R I A ko
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300 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

DT AAE= = —H

30. f3 43 BLA U AR Wik ()

(b) S BT A A LR )

activities
2021 TR AR
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities bank loans
AEgaf S RFUTR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#c
At 1 April 2020 R_FZFFENYH—H 16,614 121,517
Changes from financing cash flows B AR S (21,752) 702,233
Loan arrangement fee Bk 7 e - (1,500)
New leases e 35,562 -
Interest expenses ) BB % 796 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows — ZF5H7% &8 Bl &R EN
SRR PsS (796) -
At 31 March 2021 R_Z_—H=H=1+—H 30,424 822,250
2020 ZRRE
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities bank loans
MEAM  FHESITREX
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#c Fi#x
At 1 April 2019 W —JUEMNA—H - 377
Changes from financing cash flows NGB SRR T (7,179) 121,140
New leases BiHE 23,793 —
Interest expenses FE B % 416 —
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows SRR KRBTSR RN
[SXRIpsY (416) -
At 31 March 2020 R oECEZE=ZH=+—H 16,614 121,517




(c)
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=1+—H
30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

30. Fi 4 Bl A R Bk (A1)

(c) RLECHIBABLAIA
AR B AL B 0 B

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: mME :
2021 2020
TR CRORAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Within operating activities REIEEH N 23,575 12,284
Within investing activities HEHEIH N 554,840 —
Within financing activities BB N 21,752 7,179
600,167 19,463

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2021, the guarantees given by the
Group to certain banks in respect of performance
bonds in favour of certain customers of contract
works amounted to HK$306,184,000 (2020:
HK$201,348,000).

Claims

(i) Personal injuries
In the ordinary course of the Group’s
construction business, the Group has been
subject to a number of claims due to personal
injuries suffered by employees of the Group or the
Group’s sub-contractors in accidents arising out
of and in the course of their employment. The
Directors are of the opinion that such claims are
well covered by insurance and would not result
in any material adverse impact on the financial

position or results and operations of the Group.

31. AR
(a) RZFZ—HFE=H=1+—H > KEHAK
BT EXLRNE TR BLARESMN
BT T HAT IS IR 25306,184,000% 70
(=B R4E 1 201,348,000458 ) ©

(b) &M
(i) AL
TEASE M Z H W R SR
ACEE s A G B 2 oy P 2 AR B A
320 391 11 780 708 75 A1 DA B A5 T 1) A
LERM - EERRA B REER
Bz ZMREHE - SERREAT
EACHE I B R DL SRR AL
A BT o K S R
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31 March 2021 ZFEZ—HFE=H=+1+—H

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Claims (continued)
(ii) Sub-contractors’ claims
In the ordinary course of the Group’s
construction business, the Group has been
subject to various claims from sub-contractors
from time to time. Provision would be made
for claims when management assessed and can
reasonably estimate the probable outcome of the
claims. No provision would be made for claims
when the claims cannot be reasonably estimated
or management believes that the probability of

loss is remote.

32. COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: CRT AR B -

Construction in progress T TR

31. AR ()
(b) #1E(#0)
(ii) A HHEHE
HEAREEZ HA i g mf g -
43 ) W S W ) A 4R 4R &R R
1 o H A BLIEAE AN 68 A BN
FHR BT REA R o M IR R
SR o RIS H R E SR
B B AE 5 4R R B AT RE AR /D
AR R EE S -

32. %Ki
A 45 7 R 1 AR AR I T

2021 2020
TR TRORAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TF#oc
143,153 1,904
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BT RS
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) R BEEH AL )y Bt 2 &2 5 ] 45
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had BRAN > A S [ A A AR i v BB O AT
the following transactions with related parties during THIAS :
the year:
2021 2020
e S ZRRE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T-# 0 F#or
Rental payment to a company controlled i) — ] % P R AR 2 T] — 2 AT
by an executive director of the Company EE WA LA A 2,808 2,780
Contract revenue from a company controlled — H — SR A A 5] — 4 HU4T
by an executive director of the Company YA ] A A AT - 1,958
Purchase of products and installation services B GV 4R B i B & i J &3
from the GV Group TR 2,928 -
Note: Mt -
These transactions were conducted on terms and conditions R G T M B ET 2005 B4 B o sk I
mutually agreed between the relevant parties. P HEST ©
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AR 3= AT PN B 1 i
Group
2021 2020
e St 2 R R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#L T
Short term employee benefits 39108 B A A 22,932 11,496
Post-employment benefits A T 72 4 ) 97 74
Total compensation paid to key management A FHEHHABRK
personnel A 23,029 11,570
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included TR 2 S TN 8 — o 5 Y B S i

in note 9 to the financial statements. 9o
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34.

35.

31 March 2021
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, a derivative financial instrument included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets which are
measured at fair value, the financial assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were financial
assets stated at amortised cost and financial liabilities

stated at amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
contract assets, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank loans approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities

of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank loans as at 31 March 2021 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is determined with reference to the Cash Value as

provided by the insurance company.

35.

S EEAZ R
34.

0N B 2y 1 Sk TR

W — S A P A T AR S - I
TR AR G B K B 2 7 1
He 4l T (A PR A - R R
ERORCRESASHH  AKENSE
Pl 78 5 e U A3 90 2 45 0 0 R 22 0 6 e
8 B AT A 551 o £

ik T Z A 18 B 2 1 %5 B )
i

B TR A B MBS - ZIRGIB
& BB - AR - R R
A O SR e LA S Y < S - MBS
K~ A R Ak M R B 4 ik £
Be it B ERAT B0 B 2 -1 S L MR i fE AT -
BRI S TR N E o

<5l S A S AR A R DL BB 5 0 (o
A B RN ERTR S P % TR
R G WAL o

s B BRAT Bk A N30 580 0 4 4 1 T
AR B AT BRI~ 5 80 I B S e ik AR 01 #Y
TR B BUAT A 2 7 B BN R AR B A i it
o R“R-Z-FZA=Z+—H > KEHEA
By W EH B SRAT SR I8 A R B R B A P fE
BB AREK o

BAFEF AR EREEZ A VFET 2
HEPR B 2w B B 436 Y B R (R o
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35, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 35 4&@tTH2ZAVFMBEA V%455

36.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instrument:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2021

JE (%)

VA 5% B
TP R A G 4 TR A R R
i

A PAE R B
BB EEA=Z4—H

Fair value measurement using
A8 LT & 0 APt B

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable

active market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RN BB BRI

P i e L YN € LN €3
(GE—#) (GE=#) (E=#) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#r T#x T#x

Financial assets at fair value through BN PR AEE M

profit or loss LB RE - 5,137 - 5,137

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between level 1 and level 2 and no transfer

into or out of level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2020: nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, interest-
bearing bank loans, accounts and other receivables,
contract assets, accounts and other payables and cash
and bank balances. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial

statements.

36.

FAAEA > S — B SR AR AT B
JHE R > FL G R A X 4 A S A SR
EHEAS SR (SR FRE ) -

S o e 4 B H B B BUR

A A 1 32 2 A i TR LR R A R AR
A A - FHEERAT R - EBUREK &
Fof REWOK ~ B VR - A Rk B L A e
ffk > DR B G S RAT R - BbAF S TR
PR T A 25 A A o B 4 %
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised

below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

At 31 March 2021, it was estimated that an increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
HK$8,223,000 (2020: HK$1,215,000), arising as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on the Group’s floating-
rate borrowings. There would be no impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of the
analysis, it is assumed that the amount of variable-rate
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding throughout the whole year. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the reporting date of the next

financial year. The analysis was performed on the same

basis for the year ended 31 March 2020.

36. W05 I e A P H B B BOoR (49)

A 45 T 4 i B A A o R s R
B~ 5 BB e i ) B LB o R AL
Sl [s) oA B4 % A6 B B Y SR o % S IBOSRE
BEEWF -

SN
7% 55 R B A ) R A I e 2 LA AR
P i B P B R AR A o

MR EZA=Z+—H o MR RIRY
100 fiE] 1& 25 0y 38 im0 A > i i 7 3 At 588
AR R o Ao A A T R AR e A M AR B
FWA 18,223,000 76 ( 8 R4 ¢
1,215,000% 7€) » J5 H s A 52 H 3 B ) 34
BEH R BB ST AR o AHE R 2R i
b 3R 43 Sif JHE R B o

e A R BE 43 AT 7 A1 R R R R R
BAEMBE - BaHms - BSRRE R
M RERZ B RSF LN ERNREE -
10O i 55 114y 334 i sk ik A i 30 1) 2 7 19 ) L
FF — 8 B A O A B AT Rl
B PG R o ST TR E R R
ZA =4 B kA R S AT o
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to contract
assets, accounts receivable, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and cash
and bank balances. The Group’s maximum credit risk
exposure at the end of each reporting period in the event
of other parties failing to perform their obligations is
represented by the carrying amounts of financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group’s accounts receivable and contract assets from
contract works represent interim payments or retentions
certified by the customers under terms as stipulated in
the contracts and the Group does not hold any collateral
over these accounts receivable and contract assets. As the
Group’s customers in respect of contract works primarily
consist of government departments and developers or
owners with strong financial backgrounds, management
considers that the risk of irrecoverable receivables from

contract works is not significant.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 40% (2020: 42%) and 99% (2020: 97%)
of the total accounts receivable and contract assets were
due from the Group’s largest external customer and the
Group’s five largest external customers, respectively,

within the contract works segment.

36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. #5480 H B &k (8)

v 2R B

ACHR 5 R E B R H S AE A - RO
AR~ R AT - AR sk B At B
R o AR B B RAT AR o M A
B 77 RBEIEAT I - ACHE R A& R R
T F ) 7 I 7 <l P A
S5 IR rh B R Y R T ©

L R A O R A R N R R
AR o ACHE I B 40 AR HE MOR R B £ 2
B SRR B 2 O RT WA K S A B 8 5k
BRAE % PAL TR B KR > AR SR [ i Rt
% 54 B WOk M #00 EE REA AEA HR A B
HR A S 1 B & 4 AR % 5 B 45 WO o
P DA B B o 5 o P v B R > WOR B
i A e W [T A TR Ok I Y L B RS
* o

MR —E=ZH=+—H > HRAERHAT
T 430 ey o A8 R ACHR 3k B A 40 7E TR 40%
(BB 42%) B99% (T B4 ¢
97% ) 43 3l A& [ A 45 [ Fy 5 R AN AR % P e AR B
P AN R o PR O A 4 G U T A
B R B -
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified approach to provide
for impairment for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for impairment of all accounts receivable and contract
assets. To measure the ECLs, accounts receivable and
contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. With
the incorporation of forward-looking information in
the measurement of ECLs, management considered that
the ECL rate for the Group’s accounts receivable and
contract assets is minimal and therefore no provision for

impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets was

necessary as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

For financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (“Other Financial Assets”),
the Group applied the general approach to provide for
impairment for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9. None of
Other Financial Assets as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were
overdue, and all balances were categorised within Stage
1 for the measurement of ECLs. An impairment analysis
is performed throughout the reporting period, which is
estimated by applying the probability of default approach
with reference to the risks of default of the debtors or
comparable companies. Management considered that
the ECL rate for the Group’s Other Financial Assets is
minimal and therefore no provision for impairment of
Other Financial Assets was made as at 31 March 2021 and
2020.

36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. #5480 H B &k (8)

£ £ B (A7)

ACER T O M FH AL 5 KA e 8 o v
SEOUERL BUNE B R GHR A - TW
S50 785 S o o U0 558 O 9% A W T A M MR K S
0 A AR B P 2 RO AR R 8 o Tt
BEBE AL - BURURRKR G HEECE
e [5) 5 B B A A B A O AL o R B
TR AR B4R 2 A Wi e RORHZ > B R
Hy > AHE P EWOHR AR R £ 4 B T B
BRI - BOIEAR T F R R
FHEZHA = A H BB BRSO & 5 5 st
PR IRAG A

T2 YT > AR I P 488 e A
W5 SRR - AT WAE 2 A o B R R
51 LA o R X 2 45 % 7 23 R AL 2 9
WIR MG o at SR MR R AR - &
88 I A DA SR o TR 25 0
B IR 00 B 3 A 2 AL 8 R 0 T 0 T A
B SCAF R

B AT KO~ A sk B LA 5 E Y
S ([JCMbArmh e ) - ARBMERH—
8 T 3 5 A s 5 R o U 5 0 9 U £
BRI AR - R _F R R
SREZHAZ A B A A S
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KSR — PR B o WU I BT WA 2 AT
K27 (5 N BT L 4 ] G 7 A6 L i 12
FAIE B8R 3T KA at o SRR - ASR
VR i < b S Y RSN £ B HH R SRR AR - W
WHER R ER R OREZA S
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and

year-end staging classification as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2021

v SR BE (1)

5 1 5 T A T

TR BN AR A G BB (R E
I ORE - ik A DA £ B A 5ORS ) M 1
s R R = H =+ — B 5 B A5 B H
o vy IR DA R AR AR T B 8 o

25 G UG G RS 7 A R T AR o

B EEH=4H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 A
BN Rk 2B BUNE BHK
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
i BB BERB L HAE it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#rx T#x T#x T#1
Accounts receivable e - - - 203,611 203,611
Contract assets AHGE - - - 521,027 521,027
Financial assets included in A AT ~ ARG R
prepayments, other receivables JOfl Y A A — E
and other assets — normal* 6,731 - - - 6,731
Restricted cash - not yet past due ZREIBI4 — WA RS 110,000 - - - 110,000
Cash and cash equivalents — BIERB & FEY - WA RS
not yet past due 904,933 - - - 904,933
1,021,664 . . 124,638 1,746,302
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36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. %8458 H 2 % 8Ok (4)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) S ()
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) 15 ey L 5 T 4F A B (48)
As at 31 March 2020 R-R-FEF=A=1+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12fiA
EHEERE EHEEEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Bl B B IE BElRE fiife g CL

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#7% T#7 T#7% T#7 T#7

Accounts receivable JE W3 - - - 201,272 201,272
Contract assets UG E - - - 218,845 218,845
Financial assets included in At ABU AR ~ ARG &
prepayments, other receivables JOM 3 B Sl — A
and other assets — normal* 31,826 - - - 31,826
Restricted cash - not yet past due ZIRHIB A — MR 110,000 - - - 110,000
Cash and cash equivalents - BIERB&FEY - WA RY
not yet past due 616,045 - - - 616,045
758,471 - - 420,117 1,178,588
The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, ) st AT ARIE ~ A sk B At 4 2
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” 4 il 7 NI I 2 30T HL A A R U % S A
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating B A5 B0 R 8 A G R DA AR K R 4
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk I 3% 56 G il o A ) A5 LR il Ay IR | o
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the HH > ZEEREENG S EBERS (W
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. BE] o
Liquidity risk R ) 4 L B
The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and AR AR [ W BSR4 o ) B R B R R FEI IR B
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains BT o DUHEAR A Fr 2 A BB R4 R A
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines B4 B CRGE M R A S B - TR
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its T R R R Y R o IeAh - AR
liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In HEEH O ZERITER - UEAREZTH o

addition, banking facilities have been put in place for

contingency purposes.



OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA
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31 March 2021 ZFE _—4#=H=4+—H
36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. %8458 H 2 % 8Ok (4)

it Y e 4 B ()

AT B A S [ < b £ R R U AR P R
AR IS ARITE B &R (B
He B KR 2R g i 3 B R R o ARG e
AR BB AT R A EE R B AT R ) B A4 8 W]

computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on fEEEENER MRS -
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:
Within one In the
year or on In the third to
demand second year fifth years Total
B ALE B AR
WERMRE R4 AR b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#or F#or F#oc F#or
As at 31 March 2021 )/ S
=HA=+—H
Accounts payable JFEAS Bk 312,156 10,762 107,634 430,552
Other payables HoAth A 35 33,731 - - 33,731
Lease liabilities A 26,754 4,084 - 30,838
Interest-bearing bank loans A S SRAT B 349,713 8,924 498,259 856,896
722,354 23,770 605,893 1,352,017
As at 31 March 2020 AR TRAE
=Z=H=4+—H
Accounts payable JHEA IR 3k 227,759 55,186 31,991 314,936
Other payables At A K 22,830 - - 22,830
Lease liabilities HE A 10,315 5,881 954 17,150
Interest-bearing bank loans B RAT Bk 121,683 - - 121,683
382,587 61,067 32,945 476,599
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance the
Group’s overall capital structure through issuing new

shares as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing

debts.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the equity attributable to
owners of the parent. Net debt includes total interest-
bearing bank loans less cash and bank balances shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following table is an analysis of the Group’s capital

structure as at 31 March:

Interest-bearing bank loans (note 25)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

it B RAT B (M it 25)
W Bl KBS K&

36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. #5480 H B &k (8)

YA 4T B

ACHR B B ARG BB 2R R R B R A
T SR IR ACHE 2 b A ) P > AR ACSR
RERPAE SR - (7 I ot B2 09 o Je SR [ 2 o

Aoy ) S SR A o AR AR T
P Bl — AR 43 - AN ) S5 8 B A K B
AR G A B S > NI 28 008 AT B

R R SR BUA RO - DA
VR AN

A AR 9 20 R A £ A bl R (DL
B DARE N W) F A AN RER ) R R A -
RS A 7 A 6 B IR DU A R 5 B BT
Bk BB & B SRATAG B - TR AL
MR =A==+ 0 Z EARLHE

2021 2020
SRS | SRR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
822,250 121,517

and restricted cash (note 22) 2 R B 4 (M 7E22) (1,014,933) (726,645)
Net cash and bank balances Bl R SRAT R i A (192,683) (605,128)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BEON R R B REAGRE AR 1,349,543 1,254,843
Net gearing ratio FEARA LR N/A N/A

A 1 AN




THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

31 March 2021

ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED &R TEEZERER QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 A e ik

T S =y : = Y ¢
37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. A2 w) iy B % R B %

A R A 2 T S AR G B B R 00 A Y R

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as £/(1 [
follows:
2021 2020
TR CRORAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B % e
Investments in subsidiaries B A w ] R 55,951 55,951
CURRENT ASSETS L ) % e
Prepayment, deposits and other assets FEAHFRIE ~ 114 B HAE & 168 962
Due from subsidiaries R WA Y JB3 2 ) R I 590,119 293,097
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KB4 EY 4,079 265,862
Total current assets B A A A 594,366 559,921
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £ 4
Other payables and accruals S Ath WA 5k e E T 3,578 516
NET CURRENT ASSETS B A 590,788 559,405
Net assets R 646,739 615,356
EQUITY Bt
Share capital BeA 20,000 20,000
Reserves (note) Tt (FEE) 626,739 595,356
Total equity HARERS 646,739 615,356
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. A/ v iy B R it 3 (4)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: i
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AN REEENT
Share premium  Retained profits Total
JBe 3 e 0 x| it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fitx T
At 1 April 2019 BB —H 574,485 94,213 668,698
Profit and total comprehensive income AR P ¥ ) B 2 T WO B
for the year - 6,658 6,658
2018/19 final dividends e VI Ik
AR B - (80,000) (80,000)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-BZFEFE=ZA=+—HK
ZRIRENMA—H 574,485 20,871 595,356
Profit and total comprehensive income A N ¥R A % 4 i WAe O\ A AR
for the year - 31,383 31,383
At 31 March 2021 RoEZ - —#=H=+—H 574,485 52,254 626,739
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 38 WMl
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for AMBHRECNR B2 —FENA-TEEX

issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2021. P 2 2 L v 3 R A o



ABLE ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
ZH I EEKRARA A



	COVER

	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION

	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

	LICENCES

	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	BACK COVER




